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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

To Our Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the
“Board”), | am pleased to present to you our 2011 annual report.

Results and Dividends

For the year ended 31 December 2011, New Heritage's revenue decreased
slightly from approximately HK$375.5 million in last year to approximately
HK$375.2 million in 2011. The profit attributable to the owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 33% from the previous year to approximately
HK$12.2 million (HK$18.1 million in 2010).

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.3 HK
cents per ordinary share (0.5 HK cents in 2010) in cash for the year ended
31 December 2011 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 22 May 2012, and will seek the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on
15 May 2012 for the payment of this final dividend. The dividend warrants are
expected to be dispatched to registered shareholders in July 2012.

Business Review and Outlook

The Central Government of the PRC has since the second half of 2011
unswervingly maintained its austerity measures and curbs on property
transactions in order to tame house prices and to curb speculative investment.
In addition, they have sped up the building of affordable housing projects,
mainly by local government authorities or their related property companies in
order to take up the slack in the building industry and provide housing to the
needy. Monetary policy remains “prudent” which although it creates stability
in the medium term, will result in tighter credit in the short term. The mortgage
lending environment has improved slightly for first-time homebuyers, but the
Home Purchase Restrictions (“HPR”) in many cities that limit the purchase of
more than 2 homes remain in place. The People’s Bank of China also continues
to drain liquidity from the banking system at the first sign of any hike in the
monthly inflation rate.

The upshot of all of these policies is that new home prices in many of the more
expensive cities have fallen since the last quarter of 2011 and continue to fall.
Land sales by local governments since the second half of 2011 have also fallen
due to decreased appetites of developers in acquiring sites, and are generally in
poorer locations and increasingly commercial (rather than residential) in nature.
Despite this, land auction opening prices remain high. Thus many auctions of
land during this period have been cancelled or met with poor response and
generally only State-owned bidders have been active.

The housing market in Suzhou has been affected by HPR but our major project
in Shengze, Wujiang has not been subjected to HPR. Generally speaking, less
expensive cities such as Suzhou and middle to lower income groups have
been less affected by the austerity measures and still exhibit a willingness to
buy. During this austerity period prudent developers will continue to keep their
inventory moving, expect most of their buyers to be end-users, secure project
financing early and maintain adequate cash flow for construction activities.
Eventually the property price declines (especially the sharper declines in the
higher-tier cities) should ease policy pressure and see the lifting of some or all
of the curbs by the Central Government. The property and construction industry
will continue to play an important part in the development of the PRC economy
together with the export sector and consumption demand.

At this time, | wish to thank also our other strategic partners, shareholders and
lenders for their ongoing support during this period and express our heartfelt
thanks to them. | would also like to thank my fellow Board members, colleagues
and staff for their diligence and hard work throughout the course of the year.

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year, the Group continued its focus on property development and
investment business in Suzhou and Beijing. The Group continued to explore
prudently cities within and outside the Province of Jiangsu with high growth
potential to capture opportunities for good development prospects.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In 2011, stricter tightening measures were extended throughout the country
to curb housing investment and speculation. Purchase restrictions and credit
control policies in Suzhou dampened the property market such that transaction
volumes were reduced as well as new home prices. Prices in the secondary
market however have remained relatively constant.

During the year, Wujiang City of Suzhou was not subjected to Home Purchase
Restrictions, and the Group grasped this opportunity to speed up sales of

Phases 1 and 2 of Lakeside Garden Court with encouraging results.

The Group’s development projects in Suzhou were processed on schedule
during the year in review, are summarised as follows:

1. Wuzhong Garden Court, Wuzhong, Suzhou

BEERWED T
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1. 8% - NS

Phase 3 of the project, in the form of two 11-storey blocks, comprises
206 Small Office/Home Office (“SOHQO") units and 12 retail units
with gross floor area of approximately 10,400 sq.m. and 5,500 sg.m.,
respectively. The remaining portion of 467 sq.m. of SOHO and all retail
units were completely sold, and booked revenues were about HK$3.2
million and HK$51.9 million, respectively, during the year.

ZBEEF-HBE2EESIIENARE  HbaiE
206fE/ NV AR REMAZE([SOHO ) BAL K
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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2. Taihu Garden Court, Guangfu Town, Wuzhong, Suzhou 2. $292% - BN R LIEE

During the year, 7 low-density townhouses of Phase 1 with gross floor BRE—HESENEEEmELL800F 5 KA 7(E
area of about 1,800 sq.m. were sold, contributing sales turnover about BEREHFELERFREL - %2K4719,900,000% T
HK$19.9 million. HSHE 55 o

Construction of Phase 2 which comprised about 110 low-density BEHIEERZEFE XEEEmEL A24,700
townhouses of total gross floor area about 24,700 sq.m. was completed FTHAARNE-_HPRETEER - ——FKET -
in the end of 2011. Although the market was challenging during the BATFATISREEE - RADEL3MAAEEmE
year, 3 units of gross floor area 637 sq.m. were sold and booked in 637 FHARMEBAL WR=ZT——FAR  EED
2011, generating revenue of about HK$7.9 million. The low-density 7,900,000 LKl E - (KRB EHENEZEE /M
townhouses are primarily targeted at entry-level customers in the MBEEIFBEE BN ABREBNEREER
surrounding suburbs that have relocation compensation or are trading- P

up from nearby apartments.

Phase 3 commenced construction in early 2011. There will be around FoHNRETIRER T —FVER - HEMNK
84 low-density townhouses with gross floor area around 20,000 sq.m. B—HEBEOMEERENE  EEEEEOA
in this final phase of the project. Completion is expected to be in the 20,000 75K o TBEIBR T ——F N FEFELT -

second half of 2012.
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3.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Lakeside Garden Court, Shengze Town, Wujiang, Suzhou
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The total site area of this project, which is being developed in four
phases, is about 86,200 sq.m. with a gross floor area of approximately
154,500 sg.m..

Construction of Phase 1 with a gross floor area of around 41,000
sg.m. was completed at the end of 2010. During the year, a further
7,700 sg.m. approximately of four high-rise residential buildings was
sold, generating revenue of about HK$49.2 million.

At 2011 year end, construction of Phase 2 which comprises 4 blocks of
high-rise residential buildings of gross floor area of about 35,900 sg.m.,
was completed as scheduled. The proceeds of approximately HK$227.8
million of revenue of gross floor area of approximately 32,700 sq.m., was
booked during the year.

Phase 3, comprising around 86 low-density townhouses of gross floor
area of around 19,400 sq.m., commenced construction in mid-2011.
Pre-sales started during the 4th quarter of 2011 and a number of the
villas have already been booked and pre-sales agreements entered into.
Delivery is expected in 2012.

Phase 4 will consist of another 6 blocks of high-rise residential buildings
of gross floor area of about 58,200 sq.m.. The piling phase was
completed in 2011, and the Group will prudently match construction to
local government measures and market demands.
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4. Wuzhong Office Building, Wuzhong, Suzhou

The site area of this project is approximately 14,600 sqg.m.. The design of
this building includes office, SOHO units and retail space, with sellable
gross floor area of around 58,400 sq.m.. At the end of the year, the
project started its piling works.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group’s retail investment properties at Suzhou Garden Villa
benefited from the strategy set by Suzhou New District (“SND”) government
to create more office space and residential areas in the prime central business
district (“CBD”) where the Group’s investment properties are situated. During
2011, secondary sales of our investment properties have slowed and our focus
has reverted to leasing of the units, preferring only to sell if prices are high
enough.

1. SGV Plaza, Suzhou New District

While inflationary pressures and the March earthquake and tsunami
disaster in Japan had a negative impact on retail sales in Suzhou in the
first half of the year, from July 2011 onwards the inflation rate appears
to have eased and Japanese expatriates’ confidence seems to have been
restored. These coupled with more residents coming to live in SND’s
CBD, provided our around 11,000 sg.m. plaza with more potential
customers, and the Group managed to attract new tenant chain retailers
with strong brand names. In the reporting period, SGV Plaza generated
rental income of about HK$6.1 million with a 99% occupancy rate at
year end.

2. Garden Court Plaza, Suzhou New District

Garden Court Plaza, a 3-storey retail center with a gross floor area of
around 4,500 sq.m., was at full occupancy rate at the end of the year
and generated a rental income of approximately HK$2.6 million.

3. SGV Apartments

During the year, rental revenue was approximately HK$3.7 million. Sales
volume in the secondary residential market fell due to the austerity
measures but prices remained firm. In 2011, the Group sold 960 sq.m.
of investment apartments with proceeds of about HK$11.9 million.
As at 31 December 2011, the Group continued to hold approximately
7,600 sg.m. (47 units) of apartments.

4. Investment in Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Landmark™)

During the year, the operational results of Beijing Landmark improved
steadily when compared with that of 2010. Through the diligent efforts of
the management of Beijing Landmark, the occupancy of both the hotel
and serviced apartments has gradually increased, while the occupancy
of offices still remained at almost 100%.

4. REPPLERE - FNRTP

ZIA B A AR S A & 14,600°F 5 K o KIERS
EPAZE - SOHOEM KT EZEMR - A HEABER
TB#) /358,400 F 5K « MFR - ZIBACHHBEIT
BIR -

MHRRE

N AREERGERNTEREYEIERHFMN TR
(TE&RMmHR DB ER A EEREMEMENTE
BERORE(EEROR DIEMBRAEEZRREERMHE
o AEBBRENEN_FEER T ——Ftk - Bilk
HMEMEIENHQEMEE - - BFERS RS HE -

1. S\EFBRHL - HMHHR

HENBIRE N R AR = AR B RS KBS
BMNTEXEREETE AW BREA-Z
——FEARDTEREN - CERBRERED °
IS - AR EREBAGNHHENEET DEE
£ BEMLL000F T AMBEPLHRES B
BP - MAKEIDREE S| XA HEH T E M AT
MHE - REEHA - SBERFHEPLAELEL6,100,000
BITERIA - TR F AR HAE R /9% -

2. REBEEHL FHNTHR

IEEOTEPLRABEEELNR4,500F I3 KK
HEEERONFR2EMAEL - EAE#2,600,000/8
TR A e

3. EHMNRERLE

FRHAL U AL3,700,000E T - ZFEETIH
RHEEREMERM T - AMEBERDREE -
RZZT——F  AEBFEHIGOFHARARERABTE
i » PRSI /11,900,000 7T c R-T——4F
+=—RA=+—H" ﬁs‘%@%%ﬁﬁﬁ%’w,eoo?&ﬁx
(471E) By~ E AL

4. RULRRETAEARIA(LRZET)HWRE

BE - -ZF  IREHANZEXENFRAERR
HE - b RBAERBTMES AT - BE KRS
HXABOAFEEZWES - MHA K%E’Uﬁ%ﬂ%‘imﬁﬁ
F#L100% °

8 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011



Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group continues its outsourcing policy to fully licensed and qualified
local property management companies in Suzhou after careful due diligence.
Owners’ associations for completed projects were established in accordance
with local rules and regulations.

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

Spinnaker Capital Group

Spinnaker Capital Group, a strategic partner of the Group since 2006, remains
one of the substantial shareholders of the Company as well as a strategic non-
controlling shareholder in two of the Group’s projects — Wuzhong Garden Court
and Taihu Garden Court.

Asia Financial Group

Since 2007, Asia Financial Group (“AFG”) has been a 9.615% shareholder of
New Heritage Development Limited (“NH Development”), a subsidiary of the
Company. NH Development is the holding company of most of the Group’s
property project companies in Suzhou. AFG is also the holder of the Company’s
convertible notes.

MAJOR CORPORATE EVENT

On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) with Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia
Insurance Company, Limited (collectively the “CN Subscribers”) in relation
to the issue of the 6% convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$75 million (the “2011 Convertible Notes”).

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the subscription monies of the 2011
Convertible Notes has been applied directly to offset part of the redemption
amount for redemption of the convertible notes issued by the Company to the
CN Subscribers in 2007.

All the conditions precedent under the Subscription Agreement, among others,
the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting which was held on 16 September 2011 were fulfilled and the 2011
Convertible Notes were issued to CN Subscribers on 30 September 2011. The
2011 Convertible Notes provides more flexibility to the Group as it allows the
Group to refinance and extend the debt which was originally due for repayment
in 2012, to 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue mainly consisted of recognised property development
sales and leasing revenue from investment properties. The Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2011 was approximately HK$375.2 million (2010:
HK$375.5 million), representing a minimal decrease when compared with last
year.

The revenue from recognised property development sales included the disposal
of 10 low-density townhouses in Taihu Garden Court Phases 1 and 2, 9 SOHO
units, 12 retail units and 66 carparks in Wuzhong Garden Court Phase 3 as
well as 423 residential apartment units in Lakeside Garden Court Phases 1 and
2 of approximately HK$27.8 million, HK$57.9 million and HK$277.0 million
respectively. The Group’s total gross floor area of development properties sold
for the year ended 31 December 2011 was approximately 48,900 sqg.m. (2010:
52,300 sg.m.).

Leasing revenue from investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2011 was approximately HK$12.4 million (2010: HK$10.8
million). The leasing revenue generated from the investment properties in
Suzhou Garden Villa and two retail centres were approximately HK$3.7 million
(2010: HK$3.4 million) and HK$8.7 million (2010: HK$7.4 million) respectively.

Operating Results

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s gross profit amounted
to approximately HK$56.7 million (2010: HK$77.6 million). The decrease
in gross profit was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit margin of
property development sales. The gross profit margin for the year ended
31 December 2011 was approximately 15% as compared to approximately
21% last year.

Finance costs for the year amounted to approximately HK$6.2 million as
compared to approximately HK$18.6 million last year. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in imputed interest expenses on loans from non-controlling
shareholders as a result of reduction of imputed interest rate in 2011 and the
increase in finance costs capitalised to properties held under development.
There was a non-cash item of approximately HK$1.2 million (2010: HK$4.5
million) included in the finance costs being the imputed interest expense on
loans from non-controlling shareholders.

The valuation on the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2011
was conducted by an independent property valuer which resulted in a positive
fair value adjustment of approximately HK$8.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: HK$18.9 million).

During the year, certain investment properties were sold for a total consideration
of approximately HK$11.9 million (2010: HK$48.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 30 September 2011, the Company issued 6% convertible notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$75 million and the subscription monies was
applied directly to offset part of the redemption amount for redemption of the
convertible notes issued in 2007. A loss on extinguishment of convertible notes
amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million was incurred during the year.

Share of results of associates mainly represented the profit contributed by
Beijing Landmark to the Group for the year of approximately HK$18.5 million
(2010: HK$13.4 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the profit attributable to the owners
of the Company was approximately HK$12.2 million (2010: HK$18.1 million)
which represented a basic earnings per share of about 0.95 HK cents (2010:
1.50 HK cents).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2011 amounted to
approximately HK$265.7 million (2010: HK$422.1 million).

The Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$265.2 million as at
31 December 2011 (2010: HK$319.9 million). Borrowings classified as current
liabilities were approximately HK$187.2 million (2010: HK$286.0 million) and
the Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011 was approximately 26%
(2010: 34%), which was based on total bank borrowings to total equity.

Current, Total and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$1,139.1 million (2010: HK$1,144.1 million) and current liabilities
of approximately HK$366.6 million (2010: HK$451.5 million) which
represented an increase in net current assets from approximately HK$692.6
million as at 31 December 2010 to approximately HK$772.5 million as at
31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$1,670.7 million (2010: HK$1,659.1 million) and total liabilities of
approximately HK$667.6 million (2010: HK$709.8 million), representing
a debt ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of approximately 40% (2010:
43%). Net assets of the Group was approximately HK$1,003.1 million as at
31 December 2011 (2010: HK$949.3 million).

All land fees for all the land acquired for development by the Group have been
fully paid.

The Group is able to utilise its internal reserves and debt financing to meet the
funding requirements when opportunities for land acquisition arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE T WE DT

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2011, bank loans of approximately HK$243.1 million (2010:
HK$308.5 million) were secured by certain land and buildings of the Group,
investment properties and properties held under development of approximately
HK$39.1 million (2010: HK$40.0 million), HK$158.7 million (2010: HK$146.3
million) and HK$211.0 million (2010: HK$315.7 million) respectively.

Contingent Liabhilities

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2011.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. During the
year, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of these three
currencies apart from the appreciation of currency of Renminbi against
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivative
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its statement
of financial position exposure for the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010. Nevertheless, any appreciation in the currency value of Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars will contribute positively to the Group’s result.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly
related to the underlying business of the Group.

Employees

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a staff roster of 106 (2010: 109),
of which 78 (2010: 81) employees were based in the Mainland China and 28
(2010: 28) employees in Hong Kong SAR. The remuneration of employees
was in line with the market trends and commensurate to the levels of pay in
the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives such as share option scheme.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

The founder and members of senior management of New Heritage continue to
cultivate the culture of CSR through charitable donations, staff functions and
benefits, internships, intangible contributions to the evolution of the community
around our site of operations in the PRC, and became a Silver Member of the
WWF-Hong Kong (then known as the World Wildlife Fund Hong Kong) during
the year in review.

CSR activities and initiatives are an ongoing challenge in terms of balancing the
costs and benefits to both the corporate participant and the community. In this
regard, the Board conscientiously allocates and monitors resources available
for our CSR programmes without adverse impact on our fiscal returns. During
the year, our business development team has engaged with professionals in
preparing proposals on eco-friendly building designs, and will continue to
exercise this philosophy in our real estate core competencies.

Community Responsihility

Our Chairman’s initiatives in 1995 of introducing Suzhou to both distinguished
academic and professional parties resulted in two valuable and timeless
publications on EDAW/Pei workshop in 1996 entitled, “Suzhou: Shaping an
Ancient City for the New China”, and in 1997, a Harvard GSD design studio on
“One Body, Two Wings' Redevelopment in Suzhou, China”. Professionals were
engaged with us to work closely with local district governments in the analysis
and development feasibility of eco-friendly and sustainable development sites
close to and further afield from our Suzhou offices.

Annual charity participation include the Community Chest of Hong Kong's
Dress Special Day, Skip Lunch Day, Love Teeth Day, and purchase of annual
raffle tickets from two church institutions. Earlier in the year, Suzhou'’s offices
donated school books from one of their former international kindergarten and
nursery school tenants to a local kindergarten for special-needs children set up
in the Suzhou New District and would cooperate on further programmes where
appropriate.

Student internship programmes were arranged through Hong Kong's head
office and conducted in Suzhou’s project sites as well as with one of the
contracted local professional firms.

Environmental Responsibility

Our residential projects continue to be delivered with unfinished interiors
allowing for individual buyers’ to fit out their units to their own tastes, and
avoiding the generation of ecologically damaging demolition waste from removal
of original fittings and fixtures if unit interiors were finished.

During the year in review, the Chinese Government further encouraged and
promoted environmental awareness, coupled with more diversification of
eco-building materials available. Such material categories and corresponding
suppliers increased in numbers significantly. Our design and construction
concerns focus on building material selection, particularly on the specifications
of the eco-material and their energy-saving features.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Corporate Social Responsibility
rEHSEME

Environmental Responsihility (conta)

To comply with the latest Building Regulations and Requirements, eco-material
and energy-saving material have been used in our recent projects in Suzhou,
and updated according to the improvement and evolution of such construction
resources.

All of our projects have been designed to maximise sunlight in winter
with a southerly aspect, and with as much cross ventilation windows as
possible to reduce the necessity for air-conditioning in summer.

Further to recent changes of wall insulation material between the
interior and exterior walls, we had upgraded their fire rating to class A
(noncombustible) from that of class B (fire retardant). This would provide
both an increase in the fire safety features of the unit as well as better
thermal insulation.

While aluminium windows are still being used with thermo-break and
double-glazing, Low-E (low energy loss) glass panes were installed in
windows north-facing to be more effective on energy saving in winter.

External shade curtains were selected for south-facing windows, with
attractive colours incorporated in the window frames for a more elegant-
looking facade.

Although energy-saving material has been adopted for aluminium doors
and windows, other design considerations such as sun canopies and
partly openable windows on the southside allows for fresh air exchange
while still keeping the indoor temperatures stable.

On environment and community landscaping aspects, we paid close
attention to the distance between our buildings and houses, to achieve
more open space and natural light; internal access roads are paved with
permeable road tiles, already a well-recognised and attractive material for
project landscaping in the ecological environment considerations for the
district.

Systems for the collection of rainwater or pumps collecting riverwater
provides a natural and conservational source of irrigation for our project
landscaping and plants.

Starting from last year, all non-structural walls of our projects
were erected with concrete blocks and bulk cement, earning us a
commendation from the local authorities.

Solar-powered water heaters manufactured in China was sourced and
found to be both refined and well-established in the marketplace, and
installed in our Taihu Garden Court and Lakeside Garden Court projects.

Study of how to adopt more low-carbon business practices has also been a
focus and will be an ongoing effort through our WWF-Hong Kong membership.
Since its listing, the Group has already been using video conferencing as a
means to not only improve communications with its main office in Suzhou, but
also to address the carbon footprints associated with frequent overseas travel
practices.
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Environmental Responsibility (conta)

Our Company has also been a participant at various Business Environment
Council events in Hong Kong and also a participant at the 2011 Eco-Forum
Guiyang where one of our design concepts for an eco-building was exhibited.
Eco-forum Guiyang is an annual international event that is a platform for
resource sharing, communication and cooperation between government
officials, corporations, institutes of higher learning and research on Eco-
civilisation themes.

Employer’s Responsibility

Promoting the balance between work, health and social activity for the staff
has been an important philosophy to us, reflected in a five-day work week for
all Hong Kong based employees of the Group. Our subsidiary offices on the
mainland celebrated the start of the New Year with an annual lunch in Suzhou,
complete with prizes sponsored by the directors, suppliers and contractors. A
traditional end of year Christmas lunch with lucky draws sponsored by both
management shareholders as well as outside suppliers and professional parties
is held annually by our Hong Kong office.

A comprehensive medical insurance plan has been in place for staff members
in Hong Kong since prior to the Company'’s listing and has been an invaluable
support in the face of ever increasing medical expenses.

When available and not adversely impacting the Company’s profitability, share
options are offered to all levels of staff in Hong Kong. This practice is commonly
restricted to directors and senior management in other public listed companies.

In addition to the MPF Scheme, the Group has been voluntarily contributing
extra funding exceeding minimum statutory requirements to the staff's provident
fund scheme in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance
The Company has established and continues to refine its internal control
systems by once again engaging a qualified professional third party in the year

under review to compile findings to the relevant Board committee.

A code of conduct is outlined in the Company’s staff handbook under the
section entitled “Rules, Ethics & Discipline”.

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out on pages 27 to 32 of this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (also known as C.F. TAO), aged 89, is
an Executive Director, Chairman of the Company and a founder of
the Group. He is responsible for determining the overall business
strategies of the Group. He graduated from AEISz i K22 the former
National Central University (now known as Southeast University 8
KE) with a Bachelor of Science degree in mechanical engineering.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU had played a significant role in property investment and
property development activities in the PRC since 1978. One of the most
important PRC projects that Mr. TAOCHAIFU participated in was the
development of Nanjing Jinling Hotel (B R &F&8kJE) in Nanjing, one of
the earliest 5-star hotels built in the PRC following the “opening up” of
the PRC to the outside world in 1978. He was appointed as a director of
New Heritage Investments Limited (“NH Investments”) in 1984. He was
involved in establishing and supervising it R KEHFPR A7) (Beijing
Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.) (“BLTCL"), the joint venture with Beijing
Tourism Administration to develop the Beijing Landmark Towers complex.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the deputy chairman and an executive director of BLTCL.
He was appointed as a director of New Heritage Development Limited
(“NH Development”) in 1991. From 1991 onwards, he was responsible
for forming BRMEPFEMERBEREEEBMR AR (Suzhou Garden Villa
Development and Management Co., Ltd.) (*SGVDM”) and supervising the
overall development of Suzhou Garden Villa and Suzhou Garden Court. He is
also the chairman of SGVDM. Mr. TAOCHAIFU was accredited as an Honorary
Citizen by the municipal government of Suzhou in 1995. He was also a former
independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Expressway Company Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board. Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the Honorary President
of Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Associations Limited. He was
granted the “World Outstanding Chinese” award in 2008. He was also awarded
an Honorary Doctor Degree from The University of West Alabama in 2008.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
23 December 2004 and is the father of Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Richard, aged 50, is an Executive Director and Vice Chairman of
the Company. He is responsible for the strategic planning and corporate
development of the Group. Mr. TAO has a Bachelor of Science (First Class
Honours) from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, and two Masters
Degrees from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He was appointed as
a director of NH Development, NH Investments and SGVDM in 2000, 2001 and
2004 respectively. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the
brother of Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Paul (also known as TAOCHAIFU Porn), aged 44, is the Managing
Director of the Company. He graduated from the University of Cambridge,
England with a Master of Arts degree. He also holds a Master of Science degree
in Real Estate from the University of Greenwich, England and participated in
the Program for Management Development at the Graduate School of Business
Administration, Harvard University, USA. Mr. TAO has been actively involved
in property development and investment in the PRC for over 15 years since
joining the Group. Mr. TAO was initially responsible for the sales and marketing
activities for the projects in Suzhou, and latterly in general management. He is
a member of The 12th Committee of Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference /Bl A REBUA 79 &8 T &4 &N
WE+-_EZEEZS. Mr. TAO is also a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as a director of NH Development, SGYDM and NH Investments
in 1997, 1999 and 2001 respectively. Mr. TAO was also appointed as a director
of BLTCL in 2006. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the
brother of Mr. TAO Richard.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence, aged 63, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He graduated in 1970 from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Social Sciences degree with honours majoring in Economics and Accounting.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers, being qualified in
1977. He joined Ocean Shipping & Enterprises Limited in 1970 and has over
20 years of senior management experience. He joined the Group’s associated
companies in November 1999 and has been actively involved in the business
planning and development of the Group’s business in PRC, including but not
limited to contract negotiations with third party professionals and contractors as
well as project management. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 December 2004.

Mr. YIM Chun Leung, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
YIM is a fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants,
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. YIM also holds a Master of Business Administration
degree. Mr. YIM has more than 27 years’ experience in auditing, accounting
and finance fields. Mr. YIM had worked for several listed companies as director
or engaged in senior management position. Mr. YIM was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004 and is responsible for
corporate finance matters of the Group.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, GBS, JP, aged 47, is a Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. CHAN is a graduate and is currently a Trustee of Pomona
College in California, U.S.A.. He is a Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China. He serves as the Chairman of the
Council of Lingnan University, the Antiquities Advisory Board, the Advisory
Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings, the Standing Committee
on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service, Hong Kong-Thailand Business
Council, the Council for Sustainable Development and the Vice Chairman of
the Oxfam Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. CHAN serves as an advisor of Bangkok
Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch and the Vice Chairperson of
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Mr. CHAN is currently an executive
director and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. and Asia
Insurance Company, Limited. He is a non-executive director of City e-Solutions
Limited, an independent non-executive director of each of Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited and Yau Lee Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. CHAN is also an independent non-executive director
of Wing Lung Bank Limited (which was delisted from the Stock Exchange in
2009). He retired as an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited on 3 May 2011. Mr. CHAN was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on 14 November 2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, aged 50, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. WONG graduated from The University of British Columbia
with a Master Degree of Business Administration in Finance and Management
Information Systems, and a Degree of Bachelor of Applied Science in
Electrical Engineering. He is a member of the Association of Certified General
Accountants’ Association of Canada. Mr. WONG has been working for a number
of international financial institutions and has numerous experiences in the
banking industry. Currently, he is a manager in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited in Hong Kong. He has internal controls and financial reporting
experience. Mr. WONG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 14 November 2005.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun, aged 50, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. SUN graduated from the University of California, Los
Angeles with a Master Degree of Business Administration in 1986. Mr. SUN
is the Chief Executive Officer and a founder of Pan Asian Mortgage Company
Limited, a mortgage securitization conduit. Mr. SUN has over 20 years of
secondary mortgage market experience in Asia and the United States, directly
involved in the structuring, trading and distribution of mortgage-backed
securities globally. In 1997, Mr. SUN was appointed by the Financial Secretary
of the Hong Kong SAR government as the first Chief Operating Officer of The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation and was entrusted with managing this 100%
government-owned company. Previously, Mr. SUN was an Executive Director
in the Fixed Income International Sales Department of GS (Asia) Securities
Limited and was employed by Goldman Sachs from July 1986 to October
1994. He was also a Senior Managing Director of the Emerging Markets
Fixed Income Sales Department with Bear Stearns Asia Limited from October
1994 to February 1996. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Chongging Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. in December 2011. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
14 November 2005.

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique, aged 51, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He was an Adjunct Assistant Professor of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong from September 2001 to January 2002. He has
experience in architectural design. Currently, he is a director of BTR Workshop
Limited, an architectural and design company based in Hong Kong. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 14
November 2005.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) have pleasure in presenting
their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in property development and property
investment businesses in the PRC.

Results and Dividend
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 35 to 119.

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of
0.3 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Convertible Notes and Share Capital
Details of the movements in the Company’s convertible notes and share capital

during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,

amounted to approximately HK$26.3 million, of which approximately
HK$3.9 million has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounted to HK$26,000.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes and under
development are set out on pages 121 to 124.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of

association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

EEERE
Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 120.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Other
than the issue of 5,898,780 shares by the Company during the year, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's shares during the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. TAO Richard,
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence and Mr. YIM Chun Leung will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 16 to 18.
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Directors’ Service Agreements

The former service agreements entered into between the Company and each
executive director expired on 31 December 2011. On 30 December 2011,
each of the executive directors of the Company entered into a new service
agreement (the “New Service Agreement”) with the Company for a term of 24
months commencing on 1 January 2012 and is subject to termination by the
executive director or the Company in the manner as set out in the New Service
Agreements.

The former letters of appointment entered into by the Company and the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of
the Company expired on 13 November 2011. On 31 October 2011, the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company have each entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 14 November 2011; and such letters of
appointments may be terminated by either party by giving one month's written
notice.

With effect from 1 January 2012, the monthly salary of Chairman was increased
by approximately 4%, the monthly salaries of two of the executive directors
(also substantial shareholders) were increased by approximately 2%, the
monthly salaries of the remaining two executive directors were increased
by approximately 8% and approximately 10% respectively. With effect from
14 November 2011, except the audit committee chairman whose monthly
salary was increased by 7%, the monthly salaries of the non-executive
director and other independent non-executive directors were increased by
approximately 7.33% respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting have a contract of service
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the

Group’s business are set out in the section headed “Connected Transaction” in
this report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors had the following interests in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the Company

EERFETBRAERERATNRE RHE
B R R RS

RZZ——F+-A=+—H BARAREESFRPE
B[ BH R EAE G ) E3526MEBEFNERMATR - &
ENARBH A RABRR D P AR ER - SRRHBA
Fregs R RAI(T ERARR DB ESETESRRXZNER
ST RIZRIA R AL 7T AN G AR B RB 2 Pre s an T -

RAEXFTRDHOESZRRBRATETATHBER G 2 ExE

Number of Approximate
underlying shares percentage of
(under equity the issued share
Long position/ Number of derivatives of Aggregate capital of
Name of Director Short position Capacity Shares held the Company) Interests the Company
BRI EE b N It
(RER BB BITRAZ
EEpnE HE KA 514 FisRea8E FTETIAT) ERBE BHES
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Long Position Interests of controlled 651,882,278 - 663,397,278 51.64
Choofuang o= corporation (Note)
MEE A Ry E R (K152)
Long Position Personal interest 11,515,000
e (EPNG-
Mr. TAO Richard Long Position Interests of controlled 651,882,278 - 674,584,035 52.62
MR e 55~ corporation (Note)
R EE R (HtE)
Long Position Personal interest 22,701,757
e PN
Mr. TAO Paul Long Position Interests of controlled 651,882,278 - 674,584,035 52.52
e 5 S e corporation (Note)
Ry LB (K152)
Long Position Personal interest 22,701,757
e B AR
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Long Position Personal interest 4,500,000 - 4,500,000 0.35
Lawrence TeE B A=
IR
Mr. YIM Chun Leung Long Position Personal interest 4,976,605 - 4,976,605 0.39

iRz TR (BN

Note: Belbroughton Limited (“Belbroughton”) is the legal and beneficial owner of
651,882,278 shares. Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United Investments
Limited (“Seal United”) and 80% by United Islands Group Limited (“United
Islands”). Seal United is owned by Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (“Mr. C.F. TAQ”)
and his spouse, Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy (“Mrs. TAO”) in equal proportions.
United Islands is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard (the son of
Mr. C.F. TAO), Mr. TAO Paul (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO) and Ms. TAO Miriam (the
daughter of Mr. C.F. TAO) in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United, United
Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and
Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares held by
Belbroughton.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief executives
and their associates, had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO at the date of this
report.

K17t - Belbroughton Limited([ Belbroughton]) £&651,882,278/% %
B IEE 2B A © Seal United Investments Limited ([ Seal
United ]) B2 United Islands Group Limited([ United Islands])
5 Bl A Belbroughton 20% % 80% 2 # 2 © Seal United
DEBEEHAE(REHRLE]) RERBREEEZ -
(AKX ZEZLPIES « M United Islands B i
BEREE  BAK BRVTEE(BEHLEZRT)
s A (BB REEZ R T RBEEL T (BERTEZ
75 IEMRELFIES o Fit - Seal United + United Islands
ERBEELE BAK -  BRTLTE  BHEEER
R a1 23848 A1 Belbroughton Fri3 A 2 5% %651,882,278
RRAR (DR A R o

B EXHBEEIN ARBZES  TETHABRKREZ
B T AR O AR A B s HAE AT AR B E B 2 B0 R ARRBE R 0
BAEARATOAR - MBIRE 7 LB RPIE352(FR A
= A BT LARCER ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under section 336
of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2011, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital:

Directors’ Report
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Long position in shares BB zFE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Long position/ Number of Aggregate share capital
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held Interests  of the Company  Nofes
EARATE]
ERITRAE
e TR/ KA &1 FEROEE ERAE BREIE W
Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 663,397,278 51.64% 1
f%EE LT TE X EE R
Long position Interest of spouse 11,515,000
e [
Belbroughton Limited Long position Beneficial owner 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.75% 1
e EnlBA
Seal United Investments Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.75% 1
e i rE R
United Islands Group Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.75% 1
e X EE R
Ms. TAO Miriam Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.75% 1
P+ e i rE R
Tian Xiang Business Limited Long position Beneficial owner 150,000,000 150,000,000 11.68% N/A
AHEBERLT e EnlBA TEH
Spinnaker Capital Limited Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.19% 2
e BEKIE
Spinnaker Asset Management Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.19% 2
- SAM Limited 0E REKIE
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Long position Person having a security interest 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.19% 3
BELRT e in shares
HROFERBEROA
Asia Financial Holdings Limited Long position Beneficial owner 45,454,545 68,181,818 5.04% 4
TNemEEGER)BRATF TR BEaMAA
Long position Interests of controlled corporation 22,727,273
e XL
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'a)

Long position in shares (Cont'd)

Notes:

1. Belbroughton is the legal and beneficial owner of 651,882,278 shares.
Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United and 80% by United Islands.
Seal United is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO in equal
proportions. United Islands is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard,
Mr. TAO Paul and Ms. TAO Miriam in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United,
United Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul
and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares held by
Belbroughton.

2. Spinnaker Capital Limited and Spinnaker Asset Management — SAM Limited
(together “Spinnaker Group”) are investment managers and the controlling
shareholders of Spinnaker Global Opportunity Fund Limited (“GO Fund”),
Spinnaker Global Emerging Markets Fund Limited, (“GEM Fund”) and Spinnaker
Global Strategic Fund Limited (“GS Fund”). GO Fund, GEM Fund and GS Fund
held 24,927,122 shares, 44,314,883 shares and 23,080,668 shares, respectively.

3. The shares are held under Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft custody for Spinnaker
Group.
4. These 68,181,818 underlying shares represent the shares which may be issued

upon full conversion of 6% convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$75 million with maturity date falling 36 months from 30 September 2011, the
date of issue of the convertible notes.

Share Options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the movements in the share
options are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group's
major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 38%
— five largest suppliers combined 75%
Sales

— the largest customer 4%
— five largest customers combined 11%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers.
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Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following connected transactions, certain
details of which were disclosed in compliance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

1.

HK$75 million 5% Convertible Notes Subscription Agreement

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Asia Financial Holdings Limited (“AFHL") and Asia Insurance
Company, Limited (“AICL") (AICL is a subsidiary of AFHL which is
controlled by the associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, the non-
executive director of the Company) whereby the Company agreed to issue
and AFHL and AICL agreed to subscribe the HK$50 million and HK$25
million 5% convertible note (“2007 Convertible Notes”) with maturity
date falling 60 months from the date of issue of the 2007 Convertible
Notes respectively. Pursuant to the term of the 2007 Convertible
Notes, the holder of the 2007 Convertible Notes can convert the 2007
Convertible Notes at the conversion price of HK$1.10 per share. The
principal amount of HK$35 million (HK$25 million for AFHL and HK$10
million for AICL) of the 2007 Convertible Notes shall be compulsorily
converted at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days
if the closing price per share is HK$1.10 or higher for ten consecutive
trading days during the period from the issue day of the 2007 Convertible
Notes up to five business days prior to the maturity date. This transaction
was approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 10 October 2007. The 2007 Convertible Notes were
issued on 15 October 2007 and subsequently redeemed in full by the
Company on the date of issue of 2011 Convertible Notes (as mentioned
below), i.e. 30 September 2011.

HK$75 million 6% Convertible Notes Subscription Agreement

On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with AFHL and AICL whereby the Company agreed to issue and AFHL
and AICL agreed to subscribe the HK$50 million and HK$25 million
6% convertible note (“2011 Convertible Notes”) with maturity date
falling 36 months from the date of issue of the 2011 Convertible Notes
respectively. Pursuant to the term of the 2011 Convertible Notes, the
holder of the 2011 Convertible Notes can convert the 2011 Convertible
Notes at the conversion price of HK$1.10 per share. The principal
amount of HK$35 million (HK$25 million for AFHL and HK$10 million
for AICL) of the 2011 Convertible Notes shall be compulsorily converted
at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days if the
closing price per share is HK$1.10 or higher for ten consecutive trading
days during the period from the issue day of the 2011 Convertible Notes
up to five business days prior to the maturity date. This transaction
was approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 16 September 2011. The 2011 Convertible Notes
were issued on 30 September 2011. The subscription price of the 2011
Convertible Notes has been applied by the Company to setoff part of the
amount for redemption of the 2007 Convertible Notes.
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EEERE
Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “Related
Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly relate to
contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
contracts were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length
basis. Further details are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute “Continuing Connected Transaction”
under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year, the interests of Directors in the businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules was as follows:

Family members of Mr. C.F. TAO, Chairman of the Company including
Mr. TAO Richard, Vice Chairman beneficially owned two villas in Suzhou of a
total gross floor area of approximately 770.76 sq.m. developed by a subsidiary
of the Company which may constitute a competing business to the Group.

Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy executed a non-
competition deed on 16 November 2005 (the “Deed”). Mr. and Mrs. C.F. TAO
have also provided an annual confirmation to the Company confirming their
compliance with the non-competition undertaking as specified in the Deed.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 27 to 32 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The financial statements in respect of financial year ended 31 December
2009 were audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK”), now known as JBPB &
Co. Due to a merger of the business of GTHK and BDO Limited (“BDO”) to
practise in the name of BDO as announced on 15 December 2010, GTHK
resigned and BDO was appointed as auditor of the Company effective
from 15 December 2010. The financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2011 were audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to all shareholders
of the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14, the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices, of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Code Provisions.

Board Composition

The Board comprises five executive directors, one non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors. All five executive directors are
members of the executive committee of the Company responsible for dealing
with the business of the Company in accordance with all applicable rules and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). All Directors (including
independent non-executive directors) have been consulted on all major and
material matters of the Company.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2011 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

The number of independent non-executive directors meets the requirements
under the Listing Rules and Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai has the appropriate
accounting professional qualification. The Company has appointed a Managing
Director instead of a chief executive officer.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately by
two executive directors to ensure their respective independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for determining overall business
strategies of the Group. The duty of the Chairman is to work closely with audit,
nomination and remuneration committee of the Company and to ensure
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. The Managing Director is responsible for general
management of the Group. The Managing Director is also responsible to work
closely with the executive committee of the Company to ensure management
strategies, plans and performance of the Group are appropriately represented
to the Board and to provide guidance to the Board on major issues.
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Board Compaosition (Contd)

The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specially delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. TAO), the Chairman of the Company,
is the father of Mr. TAO Richard, the Vice Chairman of the Company, and
Mr. TAO Paul, Managing Director of the Company. Further details of the
Directors are set out on pages 16 to 18 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The non-executive
director and all the independent non-executive directors have contracts with
the Company for a period of three years commencing from 14 November 2011
which may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All the minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the company secretary and
are available for inspection by the Directors and auditor of the Company.

Attendance Record at Board Meetings

For the year ended 31 December 2011, four regular full Board meetings were
held to review the business of the Group and to approve the financial results
of the Group and the attendance of individual members at the meetings of the
Board are set out as follows:
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Executive Director BITEE

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) My EE(EE)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) BRI E(BIEE)
Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) PRSI ST A (B FARACHE)
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence PESESS

Mr. YIM Chun Leung BEIRTSEA
Non-Executive Director FHITEE

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut fRE BT AE
Independent Non-Executive Director BUHHTEE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FREXE

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun BBt

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREEST ST
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. The obligation to follow the Listing Rules are set out in the terms of
the service contracts of each executive director and the letters of appointment
of the non-executive director and each independent non-executive director.
Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The Audit
Committee consists of independent non-executive directors only. The members
of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, who possesses a professional accounting qualification
and relevant accounting experience, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
No member of the Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditor of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and approve the
financial reporting process and internal control systems of the Group. During
the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim result for
the six months ended 30 June 2011. The Group’s final results for the year
ended 31 December 2011 have been reviewed by the members of the
Audit Committee before submission to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure have been made. In March 2012, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed the Group’s internal control review report prepared by an external
independent professional consultant.

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FREXE
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 14 November 2005 with
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The members of
the Nomination Committee include one executive director and two independent
non-executive directors.

The members of the Nomination Committee are:

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. TAO Paul

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and removal of directors and management of Board
succession. No director was appointed or removed during the year.

The Nomination Committee has considered the past performance, qualification,
general market conditions and the Company’s articles of association in selecting
and recommending directors for retirement rotation.

The Nomination Committee resolved that all the existing directors should be
recommended to be retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. KONG Mui Sum
Lawrence and Mr. YIM Chun Leung would retire, and being eligible, would offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREEST ST
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun BB
Mr. TAO Paul MR ST A

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The
Remuneration Committee consists of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are:

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique
Mr. TAO Richard

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable
to Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee considered and reviewed the
existing terms of remuneration of all the Directors based on a benchmarking
review performed by an independent remuneration consultant. The
Remuneration Committee considered factors including salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considered that the existing
terms of remunerations of the Directors were fair and reasonable.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun F B E
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique FREEST ST
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
the management the implementation of the system of internal controls and
the review of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.

During the year under review, the Company engaged an external independent
professional consultant to review the effectiveness of certain of the Group’s
system of internal controls. Relevant applicable recommendations made by the
same consultant in the previous year have already been implemented in stages
by the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and
practices.

Investor Relationship and Communication

The Company strives to achieve a high level of transparency in communicating
with shareholders and the investment community at large. Briefings and
meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted at opportune
times. The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant information
on its business in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications with the
investors and analysts, all corporate communications are arranged and handled
by the executive directors with the assistance of an independent corporate
communication firm and designated senior executives according to established
practices and procedures of the Company. The Company has announced
results of the year under review in a timely manner. The Group redesigned and
launched a refreshed corporate website during the year under review through
the services of a well-qualified digital agent, further enhancing communication
channels with our investor community.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibhilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
which give a true and fair view. In preparing such financial statements, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

The auditor’s responsibility is to express an independent opinion, based on
their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion to the
shareholders of the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose. The auditor
does not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the independent auditor’s report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of results and cash flow for that year. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

Auditor’'s Remuneration
The fee in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by

independent auditor for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
HK$1,200,000 and HK$150,000 respectively.
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To the shareholders of New Heritage Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Heritage
Holdings Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 35 to 119, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BDO Limited
ERIUEARSGHMEBRARAR

Independent Auditor’s Report

38 M B B R

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

Consolidated Income Statement

mElER

2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET FHT
Revenue Uz 7 375,182 375,526
Cost of sales SHERAR (318,494) (297,880)
Gross profit ER 56,688 77,646
Other income E AU A 7 10,990 4,965
Selling expenses HERMK (13,848) (16,789)
Administrative expenses TR (43,523) (41,648)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties REMENANABERAE 15 8,400 18,883
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYENIREE 835 6,307
Finance costs A& R A 8 (6,205) (18,616)
Share of results of associates FEIGEEE A RIEE 18,500 13,424
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes SREH A AR IR AR 27 (829) =
Profit before income tax BRETSH AT BT 9 31,008 44,172
Income tax expense FRiS R 10 (20,131) (17,379)
Profit for the year FEEF 10,877 26,793
Profit for the year attributable to: LTATRIEEERR :
Owners of the Company ViN/NC] )3 12,163 18,061
Non-controlling interests Elaapliyy ey (1,286) 8,732
10,877 26,793
Earnings per share attributable to the owners FALRQBARREEEREF
of the Company during the year 12 HK cents HK cents
AL g Il
- Basic —&ExK 0.95 1.50
— Diluted —#5 0.95 1.50
FRERERAT —FT—FFH 35



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A LI& A2 2% For the year ended 31 December 2011
15% S H &= BE-T——&+-A=t—HILEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year FERAF 10,877 26,793
Other comprehensive income Hib2EUWA
Exchange gain on translation of financial statements P B O ZE 75 1 B 7S S 7 O B Ui
of foreign operations 38,611 24,445
Share of exchange gain on translation of financial statements &5 # & — RSB & A BB & Rk
of an associate KO B 5 U 2 5,499 3,041
Share of revaluation surplus of an associate’s hotel property &5 —FEIEt & A RBEE X B H AL 2,465 4,536
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FEHMEEBA IEHER) 46,575 32,022
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEKRAHALE 57,452 58,815
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LUTALTEEZEB AL :
Owners of the Company VNG| 35 50,768 43,645
Non-controlling interests e = 6,684 15,170
57,452 58,815
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As at 31 December 2011
R_F——F+ZA=1t—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR wR

2011 2010
—E2——fF T —TF
NOlfeS HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FHET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Goodwill FEES 13 37,048 37,048
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 14 60,904 64,522
Investment properties REYE 15 297,340 286,764
Interests in associates RN AR RS 17 134,306 124,757
Deferred tax assets EIEFRIBEE 18 2,011 1,929
531,609 515,020
Current assets RBEE
Properties held under development ERPYE 19 446,056 521,244
Properties held for sale HEYE 20 284,086 149,537
Inventories FE 21 74 78
Accounts receivable FEURBR TR 22 84 41
Deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables — BASi%% - TE{TEIE K& A e R IE 23 48,952 32,335
Tax recoverable GIEETE SN 1,294 -
Restricted bank deposits SRR FISRI TR 31 92,860 18,712
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 32 265,725 422,108
1,139,131 1,144,055
Total assets HEE 1,670,740 1,659,075
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable FEATRRER 24 89,865 87,883
Accruals, deposits received and other payables FEtER - _liR e REMFER FIB 25 89,484 71,982
Provision for tax TRIBRE - 5,638
Borrowings EBTE 26 187,247 285,996
366,596 451,499
Net current assets REVEEFE 772,535 692,556
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAS 1,304,144 1,207,576
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Borrowings (3= 26 190,654 148,571
Convertible notes AT AR IR 27 69,675 73,672
Deferred tax liabilities REFHEAE 18 40,691 36,038
301,020 258,281
Total liabilities FEh=Ri= 667,616 709,780
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,003,124 949,295
EQUITY fE=
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners NN B IR R B PR AN K kA
of the Company
Share capital &N 28 12,845 12,786
Reserves #E 30(a) 895,341 847,357
Proposed final dividend BR AR HARE S 11 3,854 6,393
912,040 866,536
Non-controlling interests FEiER RS 91,084 82,759
TOTAL EQUITY DB 1,003,124 949,295
TAO Richard TAO Paul
PR [EIF SR
Director Director
EEa EE2
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Statement of Financial Position

B BRI R &

As at 31 December 2011
W_F——F+-A=1+—8H

2011 2010
—E——F T -TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE FExT FAxT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARAIRE 16(a) 132,483 131,505
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FEf IR 390 284
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG ER ] 16(b) 469,616 502,261
Cash and cash equivalents HERRESEEY 32 5,353 140
475,359 502,685
Total assets HBE 607,842 634,190
Current liabilities REBARS
Accruals and other payables FEEHE A R H b FEAT K18 8,205 6,576
Amount due to a subsidiary FERT—REIF B A B 3KIE 16(b) - 15
Financial guarantee contracts WIS EIREH 36 1,259 131
9,464 6,722
Net current assets REEEFE 465,895 495,963
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBARS 598,378 627,468
Non-current liabilities FERBARE
Convertible notes AR Z= 5 27 69,675 73,672
Deferred tax liabilities ELFIERE 18 - 220
69,675 73,892
Total liabilities we s 79,139 80,614
NET ASSETS BEFHE 528,703 553,576
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners AATRRREGBRAR F#E
of the Company
Share capital R& AR 28 12,845 12,786
Reserves B4 30(b) 512,004 534,397
Proposed final dividend BURARHARR S 11 3,854 6,393
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 528,703 553,576

TAO Richard
(CEE
Director

EZ

TAO Paul
B 85 L

Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z— &+ -_F=+—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERERER

2011 2010
—ET——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNESRE
Profit before income tax R PS50 AT &2 A1) 31,008 44,172
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Depreciation e 4,722 4,032
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEW¥ - BiE &R IENEE 15 40
Gain on disposal of investment properties HERE Y ENRE (835) (6,307)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties REMEN R BERAE (8,400) (18,883)
Share of results of associates FEIGEEE AR ELE (18,500) (13,424)
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes Vaki= CIE:AY €27 42 0] 55} 829 -
Impairment loss on properties held for sales FEYMERRERE 1,507 =
Impairment loss of other receivables HAb R IERRERE = 1,055
Interest income B A (6,005) (2,583)
Interest expenses FBHAZ 6,205 18,616
Operating profit before working capital changes RETEEESBHICERT 10,546 26,718
(Increase)/decrease in properties held under ERPYERGEYHE
development and properties held for sale (), (15,444) 29,065
Decrease in inventories FERD 4 23
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEURBE R (380), R4 (43) 312
(Increase)/decrease in deposits paid, prepayments B iR e - AN FRIE R E b EUGRIE
and other receivables (3),F (16,617) 2,610
Increase in accounts payable, accruals, deposits FENEETR - E5tEA  Blize N E
received and other payables A FRIBE 1N 19,484 39,538
Decrease in amounts due from associates FEURES & N B SRIER A = 32
Cash (used in)/generated from operations REFEBH(IA)BENRS (2,070) 98,298
Interest paid BFE (15,938) (16,124)
Income taxes paid BEFTEE (23,943) (16,482)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities &&5EB(FTH), ELNREEAE (41,951) 65,692
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continuea)

A AL N~ —1 % B For the year ended 31 December 2011
?E‘ (=] IE@/)H.E (%&) HE-—Z——F+-A=+—BLFE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE FExT FAxT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNESHRE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WEMRE (292) (3,776)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEVE  BERERERS

equipment IE 75 768
Proceeds from sale of investment properties HEREYEEHIE 10,771 43,498
Dividends received from an associate I ER—EHE A A AR B 16,915 7,188
Interest received BHFILE 6,005 2,583
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR HIERT T R N (74,148) (10,644)
Net cash (use in)/generated from investing activities R&EEE(FiH) EENELTE (40,674) 39,588
Cash flows from financing activities BREIHNRESTRE
Proceeds from issuance of share capital BT ANFTIS 318 1,129 =
Proceeds from new borrowings S EMEHIE 56,077 134,250
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (122,791) (144,590)
Interest paid on convertible notes B AR ER IR FE (3,940) (3,750)
Transaction costs on issue of convertible notes BATAIRREE N R A (6,555) -
Return of capital to a non-controlling shareholder of — FAHIJE & AN 7] — EIFT B A B H9 FE3%

a subsidiary upon capital reduction fRA% SRR B A A = (19,656)
Dividends paid to Company’s owners [EAREAVAGI ST 3N (6,393) (4,678)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholder B SRR AR SR AR 2 = (384)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFTANRSFE (82,473) (38,808)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBRSEEYWORD)

cash equivalents pord-ic| (165,098) 66,472
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and EXSHHESRRSEEY

cash equivalents VA 8,715 7,340
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—BHNRERRESEEY 422,108 348,296

Rt+t=-—B=+—HHRE
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RESZEY 32 265,725 422,108
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
(E—T——F+-A=1+—HIEFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRB E R
Hotel
property,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Share option equity Merger revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
captal  premium TeServes Teserves reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ dividend Total interests equity
B BEE
BhE ZhEs TG R FiER
BE RhEE B BE  AMEE BSREBE EXRE  ieRE  REER RERE & #n RRAE
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HKFO00  HK$000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKP000  HK$000  HKSO000  HK$OOO  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
R THL TET FHL AL T TEL TEL AL R TAL TET FET
Balance as at 1 January 2010 W_E-EF-F-8
g 11694 449429 8100 3011 89,936 12,275 67,291 24310 117845 4678 783,569 83,056 871,625
Dividends paid to BRFHERRRES
non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - (384) (384)
2009 final dividend paid BR-ZENFRIRE - - - = - - - - = (4678) (4678 - (4,678)
Fair value adjustment on inifial SRR E SR E R
recognition of loans from KETLLBERR
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 4573 4573
Issue of shares for the acquistion BT E T3 RIEFT
of leasehold land and buildings BIRDH228)
(note 28) 1,092 37,908 - - - - - - - - 39,000 - 39,000
Capital reduction of a subsidiary — B AR AR - - - - - - - - - - - (19656)  (19,656)
1,092 37,908 - - - - - = = (4,678) 34,322 (15,467) 18855
Profit for the year EERF = = = - - - - - 18,061 - 18,061 8732 26,793
Other comprehensive income Hi2ABA
Exchange gain on tranlation of BEBENEBRETBRRN
financial statements of EilaE
foreign operations - - - - - - 18,007 - - - 18,007 6,438 24,445
Share of exchange gain on translation  E{E 128 — R4 AR08
of financial statements of an BRRMERNE
associate - - - - - - 3041 - - - 3041 - 3041
Share of revaluation surplus of fE(h— RS NRIBIEME
an associate’s hotel property BB - - - - - 4536 - - - = 4536 = 4536
Total comprehensive income FEEEARAEE
for the year - - - - - 4536 21,048 - 18,061 - 43,645 15,170 58,815
Transfer B - - - - - - - 2,082 (2,082) - - - -
Share of an associate’s statutory s —EBE AR LT RE
reserve - - - - - - - 1,781 (1,781) - - - -
Release upon expiry of vested BERERES Hrag
share options - - (6,132) - - - - - 6,132 - - - -
Proposed final dividend (note 11)  BERAERE(HE#11) - = = = = = = - (6,393) 6,393 = = =
Balance as at 31 December 2010 R =Z-TF
TZR=t-AMEH 12786 487337 1,968 3011 89,936 16,311 83339 28,173 131,782 6393 866,536 82759 94929
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

MEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RATRREL RS
Hotel
propery,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Share option equity Merger revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total  interests equity
TER BENE
BhE ZEEs BERRE R ¥R
RE  ROEE 1 fE AlEE ENRE EIRE iERF  REEA  AERS @t Bz EnfE
HK'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Ti#n TR TR TR TR TR TR TiEn TEx TiEn TiEn
Balance as at 1 January 2011 R-Z—%-f-R
igfed 12,786 481,331 1,968 3,011 89,936 16,811 88,339 28173 131,782 6,393 866,536 82759 949,295
2010 final dividend paid EN=E-SERERE - - - = - - - - - (6,393) (6,393 - (6,393)
Fair value adjustment on initial HHERRREN &R
recognition of loans from KRIAALEERE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 1,641 1,641
Arising from issue of ordinary RITERRERTERRD
shares on exercise of share options ~ ZEEE(A/5228)
(note 28) 59 1,070 - - - - - - - - 1,129 - 1,129
Transfer (note 28) B (11228 - 251 (251) o o S S S S = = = o
59 1,321 (257) = = = = = - (6,393) (5,264) 1,641 (3,623)
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - - 12,163 - 12,163 (1,286) 10877
Other comprehensive income E2EBA
Exchange gain on translation of BEENERNBBRRE
financial statements of Eila
foreign operations - - - - - - 30,641 - - - 30,641 1,970 38,611
Share of exchange gain on translation  [E{ 425 — B AR R
of financial statements of BRRME G
an associate - - - - - - 5,499 - - - 5,499 - 5499
Share of revaluation surplus of [l -EREAABENE
an associate’s hotel property BB - - - - - 2,465 - - - - 2,465 = 2,465
Redemption of convertible notes BOMARER = - - 2,111) - - - - 2,111 = = = =
Total comprehensive income EE2ARNEE
for the year - - - 2,111) - 2,465 36,140 - 14,274 - 50,768 6,684 57452
Transfer i1 - - - - - - - 486 (486) - - - -
Share of an associate’s statutory EhE-RBEARNETRE
reserve - - - - - - - 2410 (2,410) - - - -
Release upon expiry of vested EEBERE HEER
share options - - (1,711) - - - - - 1,11 - - - -
Proposed final dividend (note 11) R RERR 8 (Fri211) - - - - - - - - (3,854) 3,854 = - -
Balance as at 31 December 2011 W=F—-%F
TZR=T- A& 12845 488,664 - 900 89,936 19276 124479 31,069 141,017 3854 912,040 91,084 1,003,124
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands and Room 2301, 23/F, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16(a) to the
financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2012.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)  Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2011

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) ~ Prepayments of a Minimum
— Interpretation 14 Funding Requirement
HK(IFRIC) Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
— Interpretation 19 with Equity Instruments
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new or revised
standards and interpretations has no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) — Business Combinations

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010, HKFRS
3 has been amended to clarify that the option to measure non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) at either fair value or the NClI's
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets is limited to instruments that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation.
All other components of NCI are measured at their acquisition
date fair value unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. The Group has amended its accounting policies for
measuring NCI but the adoption of the amendment has had no
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Group did not
have any business acquisition in 2011.

—REHR

AARRH SRS TMHR IR —HEREARAF -
ARABBMORERMARZMAER AR (B E
RET °

ARATGEMIERE R EZE LMD 5 AClifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands } &8 /&7 &
THTE77-79% &M AE 2312301 % ©

ARARNTEEBRREER  WEA RN EEER
BN R MR 16(a) ©

BEEER T —_F=ZAt+ALATIEEE=-Z
—F+-A=t+—HILFENIBERE -

RMEEMBREER ([ FRMBER

H2EA])

() FAFTREETEEUBREEY-H=F
——F—A—BREN

BRMBRELR(EITX) “E-TEHRRNG
HEERMSRE
BRGENERFMETE  HRNDE
BE(ERYBREENRE  REASREN
ZEe)-REFUFHETL BENFE

F (BRa s R DABRA T BE 84
REZEE)-REEINN ERER

BB G ERFE245R BEANLRE
(&3]

BT PrESD - SRNZ SR IS FT 4R
haBUEHAEE BBRRELERNY

.
=

BB IR EERE 3T (15T K) — R IEA

R -_ZE-RFEMzBEEUBRELR 2
HERD  BEVBREEFEIFDELE
5 MBI AR BESIRIF R ([ IFE
Bt ss |) fE e B U7 AT R R B B VA P B RERR
IR PR L DI RRET B IR A s RO IR 12

REIRRGHEAERN TR  WETERFEA
M PBREHRIL D RKRE D 2 BEF
B - BIERBMBMELARERRKAE M
BEE - BRIFRAFER R 2 H AR D
BUARE RSz AR EEFE - ARBEEEE
HAERFEIFERER 2 5T BUR - ARAE
BN T FUWEEAERFUIEEE - HUR
NEBETAEARE 2 B WAL BELE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2011
(Cont'd)

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related party and
clarifies its meaning. This may result in changes to those parties
who are identified as being related parties of the reporting entity.
The Group has revised its accounting policy for the identification
of its related parties and has reassessed counterparties of
transactions in accordance with the revised definition. The
reassessment did not result in new related parties being identified.
Related parties identified in prior years remain unchanged
under the new accounting policy and the Group concluded that
the revised definition does not have any material impact on the
Group’s related party disclosures in the current and previous
years.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified disclosure
requirements applicable to related party transactions where the
Group and the counterparty are under the common control, joint
control or significant influence of a government, government
agency or similar body. These new disclosures are not relevant to
the Group because the Group is not a government related entity.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The Group has not applied the following new or revised HKFRSs
that have been issued, but are not yet effective in these financial
statements.

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income3

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Financial Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Amendments to HKAS 1
(Revised)
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Assets and Financial Liabilities*
Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial Statements*
Joint Arrangements#

Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities*

Fair Value Measurement*
Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Instruments*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine#
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income into
those that may be reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and those that
may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant and equipment).
Tax on items of other comprehensive income is allocated and
disclosed on the same basis. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property is recovered entirely through sale.
This presumption is rebutted if the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale. The
amendments will be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the requirements for offsetting financial
instruments. The amendments address inconsistencies in current

practice when applying the offsetting criteria and clarify:

- the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off”; and

- that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

The amendments will be applied retrospectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial assets and allow
users of financial statements to better understand the possible
effects of any risks that may remain with the entity on transferred
assets. The amendments also require additional disclosures if a
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are undertaken
around the end of a reporting period.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial assets
measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will have a
choice to recognise the gains and losses in other comprehensive
income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation of
all investee entities. An investor has control when it has power
over the investee (whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the investee and the
ability to use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment of
control. For example, the standard introduces the concept of
“de facto” control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights in
circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee. Potential voting
rights are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as principal or
agent and also whether other parties with decision making rights
are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on
behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision making
authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes
in those entities which are regarded as being controlled by the
Group and are therefore consolidated in the financial statements.
The accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward unchanged.
HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures
requirements about interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on the
reporting entity’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

2.

3.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to
measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other
standards. The standard applies to both financial and non-
financial items measured at fair value and introduces a fair value
measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The
standard removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market. Rather
the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements on the
financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted early and is
applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs and the directors
so far concluded that the application of these new or revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for the investment properties, hotel properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interest are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010
(i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been
accounted for in accordance with the transition requirements
in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first
application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of these
business combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interest that represent present ownership interest in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of subsidiaries
(other than those under common control) is accounted for by
applying the acquisition method. This involves the estimation
of fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date,
regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial
recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their fair values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the end of the reporting
period. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(c)

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert
significant influence, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture.

In consolidated financial statements, investment in associates is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using
the equity method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill
is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of the investment. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate
is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the period includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for the year,
including any impairment loss on the investment in associates
recognised for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associates are reversed on equity accounting,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Where the associate uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group
in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Cont'd)

After the application of equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment
loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) of
the associate and its carrying amount. In determining the value in
use of the investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate, including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the end of the
reporting period retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined and are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency, have been
converted into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses have been converted
into the Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
the exchange reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(e)  Property, plant and equipment

(1)

(i)

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

2% — 5%
10% - 20%

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles 20%
Operating and office equipment 5% —20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Hotel properties Period of the lease terms
The asset’s depreciation methods, residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period.

Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel properties,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Hotel properties held by an associate of the Group are
stated at valuation determined by external professional
valuers less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Changes in the value of hotel properties are dealt with as
movements in the hotel property, plant and equipment
revaluation reserve. If the balance of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the profit or loss.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus remaining in equity
is transferred to retained profits on the disposal of hotel
properties and certain buildings that have been transferred
as investment properties.

B RS ERAR B AL

4., FESTEEE)

(e) W% BMEKZRME

(i)

(i)

M3 - WS R TR T R
BRLA BRI T B4 S A A S
5HRNTE -

HELHRET 2%-5%
HEMREE 10%-20%
AE 20%
EENMAERE 5%—-20%
RMREE 20%
Y YES HEFH

BENITEDE  NBBERAIEASF
HIR RS R IRAT - SR AR (W
R e

L s
FTEEE

W~ B KRR R (OB FE ) 3651 ) 1K
MR EITE RRERBRTIE - BEX
FEEEBEERBZEEEDAEE
RSB X E R B R BE AE R (E
EZARBRAR - RIENRAREERE
% B AR R RREN A BER AR
£E - MZEKARE R FEFFENBERT
FPABENREE - BRR—IEBL
BE(WER) - A EMKRAR(EE
RRB)RELMMHBRAERRE
S8 e

AREE ) —HH S R B PTEA EEEY)
% ThiRfhER RFHTE MR ER RS
R o (HIEMRSNEFRMERMETE

BIEMEEENEE) - DEREEY
¥ BEARBELRENEHERE -
BB R ARINEAL - P
HEE A IR AR A S 3H o

BEBERHEMEENBRREEMN
SREREERAERNEZRETE -
WHMEER IR AR - RHEBEDER
ERERENMENETETE - #5R
RepmEM B[RS ERERE AT
A o

HRERERAE

—z——x55 O3



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

(2)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it was held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value,
unless it is still in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience with respect to
both the location and the nature of the investment property. The
carrying amounts recognised at the end of the reporting period
reflect the prevailing market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or the
sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests over the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. The consideration
transferred is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 4(s)).

Any excess of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount
of gain or loss on disposal.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(h)

()

()

Properties held under development

Properties held under development for future sale are included in
current assets and comprise land held under operating lease (note
4(0)) and aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies,
wages, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets and other
expenses (“Development costs”). Development costs are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Other expenses
included (i) those costs that are incurred in bringing the properties
held under development to their present location and condition
and (ii) a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that are incurred
on development of properties. Fixed overheads are indirect costs
which remain relatively constant regardless of the size or volume
of the development.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated selling expenses.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling
expenses.

The cost of properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the properties to their present location and condition.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates are set out below.

The Group classified its financial assets as loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of the financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at the end of the reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
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BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()]

Financial assets (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If
any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial asset
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets
in the group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(0)]

(k)

m

(m)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise consumable stores for own consumption
which are stated at cost. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, accounts and
other payables, accruals, deposits received and convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 4(u)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified separately
into respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debts. The fair value of the equity
component is determined using the binominal option pricing
model.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component will
remain in equity until conversion or redemption of the notes.

When the notes are converted, the convertible notes equity
reserves and the carrying value of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the notes are
redeemed, the convertible notes equity reserves are released
directly to retained profits.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to their respective fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received

Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received are
recognised initially at their fair values and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
financial guarantee contracts. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in the profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantee issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount, i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(0)

Leases (Cont'd)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group (Cont'd)

Leasehold interest in land is up-front payments to acquire
the land use rights. The payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the up-front payments over the lease terms.

Leasehold interest in land included in properties held
under development and properties held for sale, of which
the amortisation of prepaid land lease is capitalised as part
of the building costs during the development period but
charged to the profit or loss for completed properties.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included
in investment properties in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The recognition of rental income is set
out in note 4(r).

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(p)

(q)

Provisions, contingent liahilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the group are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination. They are initially measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Probable inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet
meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent
assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits) to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for sale is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties held for sale have been transferred to the purchasers
and the Group retains neither continuing involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over properties held for sale. The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of possession of properties
to the purchaser when the property hand-over confirmation
is executed by the Group and the purchaser. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage and pre-
sale are included in current liabilities and are not recognised as
revenue.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period in
which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, investments in
subsidiaries and interests in associates are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of money and
the risk specific to the asset.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(s)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro
rata to the other assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the reporting
period to which the interim period relates.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a fixed percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

()

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (Cont'd)

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligation under these schemes is limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Employee share-based payment compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting
conditions apply, or recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date when the equity instruments granted
vest immediately unless the compensation qualifies for
recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase in
the share option reserves in equity. If vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of equity instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserves
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserves will be transferred to
retained profits.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs for all eligible assets
where construction was commenced on or after 1 January 2009.
The Group continues to expense borrowing costs relating to
construction projects that commenced prior to 1 January 2009.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the end of the
reporting period. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(v)

(w)

Accounting for income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,
and only if:

(a)  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in net if, and only if:

(a)  the entity has a legally enforcement right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the Group'’s
major product and service lines.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta)

(w)

Segment reporting (Cont’d)
The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

Property development Property development and sale of

properties held for sale

Property investment and
leasing

Property leasing and sale of
investment properties

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each
of the product and service lines requires different resources as
well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are
carried out at arm length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

- share of results of associates accounted for using the equity
method;

- loss on extinguishment of convertible notes;
- income tax expense; and

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude goodwill and
interests in associates. In addition, corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities information is not reported or used by the
Group’s executive directors.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta)

(x)  Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group were stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 4(f). The fair value of the investment properties are
determined by a firm of independent qualified professional
valuers and the fair value of investment properties as at
the end of the reporting period are set out in note 15. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results.

In making the judgement, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period and appropriate
capitalisation rates. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions entered into
by the Group.

(i) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4(s). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating unit have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates. Details of the assumptions used are set out in
note 13.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (contd)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Net realisable value of properties held for sale and
properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
completed properties held for sale by using prevailing
market data such as most recent sale transactions and
market survey reports available from independent qualified
professional valuers, and internal estimates of costs based
on quotes by suppliers.

Management’s assessment of net realisable value of
properties held under development requires the estimates
of future cash flows to be derived from these properties.
These estimates requires judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate
sales) and the expected costs to completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group’s management assesses the collectability of
accounts receivable. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the Group’s customers and the current market
condition.

Management reassesses the impairment provision at the
end of the reporting period.

Valuation for convertible notes

The management uses their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Group'’s and the
Company’s convertible notes at initial recognition which
are not quoted in the active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied. The fair
value of convertible notes at initial recognition is estimated
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers, based on actual
transactions of the financial instruments in the market or
transactions of similar financial instruments which generally
represent the best estimate of the market value. The fair
value of convertible notes at initial recognition varies with
different variable and certain subjective assumptions. Any
changes in these variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of convertible notes. Details
of the fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition are
disclosed in note 27.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (conta)

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

(i)

(i)

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale during the year as disclosed in note 7. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to a buyer requires
examination of the circumstances of the transaction. In
most cases, the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the passing
of possession to the buyer. The Group believes that
its recognition basis of sales as set out in note 4(r) is
appropriate and is in line with the current practice adopted
in the PRC.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision of tax and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in periods in which such determination are
made.

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in
the PRC. However, the implementation and settlement of
this tax varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of
the PRC, and the Group has not finalised for certain LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax authorities in
the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount on the appreciation of land
value and its related LAT. The Group recognised LAT
based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.

During the year, the Group incurred LAT of approximately
HK$11,741,000 (2010: HK$2,091,000) which was charged
to the consolidated income statement as income tax
expense. The directors considered the amount charged to
the consolidated income statement to be adequate as this is
calculated according to the method which is in compliance
with the existing rules and interpretation of LAT.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the
Group’s service lines, which represents the main products and services
provided by the Group. The Group has identified the following reportable

segments.

Property development:

Property development and sale of

properties held for sale

Property investment and
leasing:

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
these product and service lines requires different resources as well as

marketing approaches.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, there have been no changes
from prior years in the measurement methods used to determine

Property leasing and sale of investment
properties

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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operating segments and reported segment profit or loss. AEMERE -
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. SIEFEEIRERTEE -
2011
—E——fF
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
MIERE
MERR RHE EIE] #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FET
Revenue: Wk
From external customers KEINREF 362,763 12,419 - 375,182
Inter-segment revenue pak Il 6,481 122 (6,603) -
Total segment revenue Pl g 369,244 12,541 (6,603) 375,182
Reportable segment profit T E2F2\EF 28,763 6,556 = 35,319
Bank interest income RITHEHA 5,245 675 - 5,920
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENRIETE
equipment (547) (2,860) - (3,407)
Gain on disposal of investment properties  H &R &Y 2 H s - 835 - 835
Impairment loss on properties held for FEVERBEEE
sale (1,507) - - (1,507)
Fair value adjustments on investment BEMEN D BERRE
properties - 8,400 - 8,400
Finance costs LR (3,452) (2,753) - (6,205)
Reportable segment assets A2 BEE 1,063,784 363,863 = 1,427,647
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ ERNIERBDIEEERE
during the year 29 262 - 291
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. ZEERM®E
2010
—E-ZTF
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
YR E
VIR MEE 8 FoE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAT
Revenue: Wzs
From external customers KEINARE 364,737 10,789 375,526
Inter-segment revenue AR - 117 (117) -
Total segment revenue Bl 364,737 10,906 (117) 375,526
Reportable segment profit Al RN FBAF] 36,927 18,320 55,247
Bank interest income RITH BULA 2,443 103 2,546
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% -~ BE R ETTE
equipment (293) (2,775) (3,068)
Gain on disposal of investment properties &R &Y 2RI Uz = 6,307 6,307
Impairment loss on other receivables H b e ORI E R 18 - (554) (554)
Fair value adjustments on investment KEMERNA R BEAE
properties - 18,883 18,883
Finance costs A Rk R (14,759) (2,427) (17,186)
Reportable segment assets E2WmNEEE 1,050,884 356,709 1,407,593
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ ERIERBDEBEESRE
during the year 1,990 583 2,573
The total presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile to the MBS RETNZS) - AEEN G ED BN ER
Group’s key financial figures as presented in the financial statements as FEVBEREEROT ¢
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Total segment profit wo kRN 35,319 55,247
Share of results of associates FE(RERE R RIZEE 18,500 13,424
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes JREE AT AR RIR A& 1R (829) -
Corporate overheads NG (23,903) (25,494)
Other unallocated income HAbRDERUA 1,921 995
Profit before income tax FRETIS AT & A 31,008 44,172
Reportable segment assets AIE2MNEEE 1,427,647 1,407,593
Goodwill EES 37,048 37,048
Interests in associates B AR A RE R 134,306 124,757
Corporate assets RAEIEE 71,739 89,677
Total assets HEE 1,670,740 1,659,075
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RAILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. ZEER®E
No geographical information is presented as the operations, major HRAEBEMER T EXPREERZMAFH -
customers and assets of the Group are substantially located in the PRC. AT 2 25135 5 B E K ©
The Group has a large number of customers, and there was no AEBHFBERERS HEZ——FK_T—ZTF
significant revenue derived from specific external customers for the years T A=t BLEFEVEREBEINAZTENER
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. UES o
7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WEREMEKA
Revenue, which includes the Group’s turnover and other income MAEERERNRE (BEAEERN S EE) REAU
recognised during the year are as follows: AEHT -
2011 2010
—E——5F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAExT
Revenue Wz
Turnover EEE
Proceeds from sale of properties held for sale e EY RS RIE 362,763 364,737
Rental income LA 12,419 10,789
375,182 375,526
Other income Hittlg A
Interest income FEWA 6,005 2,583
Exchange gain, net bEE 5 W25 558 2,937 576
Others Hith 2,048 1,806
10,990 4,965
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®MEMA
2011 2010
e —ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable EARAFANEENEENSEAR

within five years:

Bank loans WITER 13,022 12,977

Other loans HEMaER = 74

Imputed interest expense on loans from IR AR R B KA BT F B

non-controlling shareholders 2,315 4,450
15,337 17,501
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable FRAFREENEENESER

after five years:

Bank loans SRITER 2,916 3,073
Interest charge on convertible notes (Note 27) EREEOFSER(K227) 5,669 4,480
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at WIER AR BERERYIRAD

fair value through profit or loss TRIBEN SR BE 23,922 25,054
Less: Amount capitalised in properties held under B B ERERYEEANE Y

development * (17,717) (6,438)
6,205 18,616
2 The finance costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.15% (2010: 5.81%) * RERRNDIRENEI15%(—T—FF : 581%)&
per annum. A o
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B RS ERAR B AL

FINANCE COSTS (Cont'd)

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including term
loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the interest on bank
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to

8. BEMRA#)

HIEY 2 o
HIEFE -
R4 51,634,000 7T &

approximately HK$1,634,000 and HK$1,355,000 respectively.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. KRFIEHAEF

BRADIIIRRITERENRERA -
TR 17 E At B EE B DR E R ESKE R R E
BE_ TSR _FT-FTHF+_A=1—
MERZRERIGTORITEENTSD

1,355,000 7T °

BEREBEEN

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ BTSRRI BFI T K(GEA)
(crediting): TH|&IA :
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as expense 3R/ 5 2 H135E W) 2/ AR 315,423 295,300
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREEITE 4,758 4,066
Less: amount capitalised in properties held under W BERRPYEEARNEE
development (36) (34)
4,722 4,032
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that BERRNEEELTHSWAZIREME
generated rental income during the year 0= 3,071 2,580
Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings & 8+ RiEFH K LHEE A 336 1,271
Auditor's remuneration 1Z AN & 1,350 1,286
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments (note 33(a)) & TRk (BIFEEME (H15733(a))
and retirement benefits cost MRIREF &) 36,626 32,296
Less: amount capitalised in properties held under W BT R EE AN EEE
development (11,697) (9,858)
24,929 22,438
Amount recognised as expense for retirement benefit RAEBRKEN AT S
costs 1,396 1,024
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEDE  MENEENEE 15 40
Impairment loss on other receivables Hib R IEREEE = 1,055
Impairment loss on properties held for sales FEMENREEE 1,507 =
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYENKE (835) (6,307)
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes (note 27)  Sh$4 AT AR Z IS0 B (H15227) 829 -
Exchange gain, net IE 5 W e 3 58 (2,937) (576)
FRERARAT —F——FFH 75




Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRSBIBAX

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated income statement SAEWERAMFIEHASY S 5EE -

represents:

2011 2010

—E——F T -TF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaF FET THT

Current tax — the PRC BENHEAFE1E —

— Corporate income tax —EMER (a) 5,270 10,258
— LAT — IR ER (b) 11,741 2,091
17,011 12,349

Deferred taxation (note 18) IEERIE (f17£18) 3,120 5,030

20,131 17,379

Notes: Hiat -

(@) The PRC corporate income tax is computed according to relevant laws and (a) R EREH HIREP B ARERHE - HE
regulations in the PRC. The applicable income tax rate was 25% for the T FR-FTF+-A=+—BILFENE
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. RIS TR & R25% ©
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group had no AR AEEBNAFELEE G ERBERF(=ZF
estimated assessable profits for the year (2010: Nil). —ZF [ ®) BT ESERESFIS RS -

(b) Under the Provisional Rules on LAT Implementation Rules of the PRC (b) BER—NMNEF—A -+ tBERENPELHHIEE
implemented on 27 January 1995, all gains from the sales or transfer of REITIRAIERMA) - FTEREEEENFEN L+
land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC are subject Hh{E PR © 1B F RABRE A S B as - 9B
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation THIERER - BRI ERE (A EMEMB R
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible R ATHR S L - BIE T AR A R A
expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property development BRAX)ARERHE - BA30%E60% 1 5F ©
expenditures.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit RE SR A S Al AR A W R MR TS BRI & F

before income tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: HERINT -

2011 2010

—E——F T -TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Profit before income tax R PR1S TR & A 31,088 44,172
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at the rates  #&2/8 B W E 5[ NEA TR R+ E

applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned KR PSR B AR IR 9,316 12,167

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAHNB A SR E 8,922 10,971

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AR RS 52 2 (15,307) (10,620)

Tax effect of temporary difference arising from RO IRBH BN E R EREATE LN

withholding tax for undistributed profits e 1,826 1,096

LAT charge T HIZER S 11,741 2,091

Others Hith 3,633 1,674

Income tax expense for the year REEMEFRBAZ 20,131 17,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

11.

12.

B RS ERAR B AL

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
Dividends attributable to the year: FAEMLKRE :
2011 2010
S T35
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Proposed 2011 final dividend of 0.3 HK cents BRK-ZT—— SRR EEFREBER
(2010: 0.5 HK cents) per ordinary share 0.3 =F—Z4F : 0.5784l) 3,854 6,393

The final dividend proposed after the years ended 31 December 2011
and 2010 had not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period, but reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
the year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$12,163,000
(2010: HK$18,061,000) and on weighted average of 1,279,169,644
(2010: 1,205,341,055) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In the calculation of the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011, the potential
shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes
would increase the earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company and was not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive
effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$12,163,000 and on weighted average of
1,280,795,438 ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2011, being the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,279,169,644 used in basic earnings per share calculation adjusted
for the effect of share options issued of 1,625,794.

In the calculation of the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010, the potential
shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes
would increase the earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company and was not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive
effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$18,061,000 and on weighted average of
1,207,498,688 ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2010, being the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,205,341,055 used in basic earnings per share calculation adjusted
for the effect of share options issued of 2,157,633.

12.

HE-Z——FR-_ZT—TF+-_A=+—HILFE
BRBUR AR B AN R E I ARERBARE - BEE
e FENRBEFDIR

BREF

FRREARRBN TE AR TR ARG 2 F4912,163,000
BT (T4 1 18,061,000 7T) RERXNE BT
LSBT A INAE T 801,279,169,6440% (—F —Z4F !
1,205,341,0550% )51 -

AEEE T ——F T A=t RIEFENEAQF
BREHERESRNE - SRRRRRRRRERE
EREERNSEMARRRREEFREHN - ER
BRERMARBSYE  RUBAEER - Bt - A
RE RIS B EE BN R AR B RR B 27
#4912,163, 0008 T REEZE T ——F+-_A=+—
B L E B 31T & @Ay hn#E 719 201,280,795,438
IRETE - BN A B E 8171,625,7941) BN R
2 ARt ESRERE R 8B A IR T 5 8
1,279,169,644 % -

AERE T -EF T A=+ HIFENERF
BREGHESRETRNE - SRR RRRRRERE
EREERNDSEMARRRREESRAN - BR
BRERNARESYE  BUBAEER - Bt - A
RE RS B S B N IR AR B R B &2 7
#4918,061,0008 TREHE T —TF+-_A=+—
HIEFEE TS B ¥ 15 £01,207,498,688
MRt & - BAC 8 B 2 8172,157,633 10 A IE MY &2
2 AREtESRERE N A E B A I T 58
1,205,341,0550% °
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13.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE

GOODWILL 13. B8
Group
AEH
2011 2010
=2——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Gross amount #azg
Balance as at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+-—A=+—8t0%&% 37,048 37,048

The goodwill as at 31 December 2011 comprises mainly goodwill
arising from the acquisition of New Heritage Investments Limited of
approximately HK$33,672,000 in 2005.

The recoverable amount for the cash-generating units, the underlying
hotel and property operations, in relation to New Heritage Investments
Limited was determined based on value in use calculation, covering
a detailed 5-year cash flow projection followed by an extrapolation of
expected cash flows with a nil growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate for
value in use calculation is 5.71% (2010: 6.40%).

The management’s key assumptions for the Group have been
determined based on past performance and their expectations for the
market development. The pre-tax discount rate reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant cash-generating unit.

Management also believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining the value
in use of the cash-generating units, the management is not currently
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in
their key assumptions.

RZB——F+ - A=+—HNBHEBEIERER
TEERFUNBHECEERAREENBEY

33,672,000% 7T, ©

BRMECEXERARRSELEN - HBEEERY
EEB AN E SR IIREREEFELEE - BE
FHAMSFHRERETN - KEATERENIEY
RenBEIMERE - EREEEEMAHATER
ER571%(ZF—ZF : 6.40%) °

EEEUAEENTIERRIBEEEBERANE
BEHTISERNMERETE - BATHRERERT R
AR CEEENEBNTTER

ERETEE  E2REPENERATRESENE
BRI S H I e EREEEBE KO -

BEnEFREELEMFEREENZERARN &

B E B g~ AEE A E A A]
FEBRNIBER -

=4

BmAE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 14. V1% - BERZE —F&KHE

Leasehold Operating and
land and Leasehold Motor office Furniture
buildings  improvements vehicles equipment  and fixtures Total
HELH HENE EERBAE
REgF £ AE BE  BRARHEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-Z5-A—-H
Cost A 20,830 9,901 2,133 7,436 2,884 43,184
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (3,849) (5,201) (1,598) (5,041) (1,491) (17,180)
Net book amount IREFE 16,981 4,700 535 2,395 1,393 26,004
Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-_F-FTHE+-A=1+—H
HEE
Opening net book amount FURmFE 16,981 4,700 535 2,395 1,393 26,004
Additions NE 40,160 427 1,920 123 146 42,776
Disposals HE - (375) (98) (57) (278) (808)
Depreciation ne (1,116) (1,807) (239) (555) (349) (4,066)
Exchange differences fEHER 418 76 52 50 20 616
Closing net book amount FREMFE 56,443 3,021 2,170 1,956 93?2 64,522
At 31 December 2010 N-B-ZE+=-A=1+-H
and 1 January 2011 k=®2--%-8-H
Cost %N 61,533 9,903 3,138 7,168 2,616 84,358
Accumulated depreciation ZEtHE (5,090) (6,882) (968) (5,212) (1,684) (19,836)
Net book amount RmFE 56,443 3,021 2,170 1,956 932 64,522
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-Z-——-%+-BA=+-H
LFE
Opening net book amount FUEREFE 56,443 3,021 2,170 1,956 932 64,522
Additions NE - 41 - 15 176 292
Disposals & - (15) - (36) (39) (90)
Depreciation e (1,848) (1,453) (571) (546) (340) (4,758)
Exchange differences [EHZ5 674 91 13 n 29 938
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 55,269 1,685 1,672 1,520 758 60,904
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&5+ZA=t-H
Cost (%N 62,439 10,235 3,250 7,195 2,762 85,881
Accumulated depreciation 2:rE (7,170) (8,550) (1,578) (5,675) (2,004) (24,977)
Net book amount IREFE 55,269 1,685 1,672 1,520 758 60,904
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP (Conta)

Depreciation expenses have been included in:

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE

14. Y%  BERREB -FEE(7)

FERXBEETIIRA

2011 2010
=2——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FET

Consolidated statement of financial position ERE BISARR R R
— capitalised in properties held under development —BRERTYMEESR 36 34

Consolidated income statement RA R

— cost of sales — SHE RN 242 2,020
— administrative expenses — 1T 4,480 2,012
4,758 4,066

Net book amount of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings shown
above comprises:

EXFIRRAEERE T30 MEFHREFERRE

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties in Hong Kong held under long leases AN EAMERPEE

(not less than 50 years) (R HB0%E) 39,089 39,971

Properties outside Hong Kong held under long leases ~ FriFBHIE BN EEEIRE
(not less than 50 years) (D RB0E) 16,180 16,472
55,269 56,443

As at 31 December 2011, certain leasehold land and buildings of
approximately HK$39,089,000 (2010: HK$39,971,000) were pledged to
secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

R-EBE——F+-A=+—0 - #39,089,000/% 7T
(ZZ—=4 : 39,971,000 ) METHE LB KE
FEFEM  WERAEBERNS TRITER

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

7E26(a)) °

15. REYE

Group

AEH
2011 2010
—E2——5F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January MN—HA—B8EREE 286,764 297,781
Disposals HeE (9,936) (37,191)
Fair value adjustments RABERAE 8,400 18,883
Exchange differences R ZERE 12,112 7,291
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+t=-RA=+—BMHKRHEE 297,340 286,764
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

As at 31 December 2011, certain investment properties of approximately
HK$158,670,000 (2010: HK$146,320,000) were pledged to secure
certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

Investment properties included leasehold interests in land located in the
PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2065.

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2011
was based on the valuation by DTZ, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers. Valuations were based on the properties’ open
market value on 31 December 2011. The properties have been valued
by direct comparison method by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant market and where appropriate, by
capitalising the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due allowance for the reversionary potential of the respective properties as
at the end of the reporting period.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

15.

16.

B RS ERAR B AL

REWEE)

RZZTE——F+_-_A=+—H ' 158,670,000/ T
(ZZE—F4 : 146,320,000/ T) W& TIREME
BEFEE  WERASEERNE TEITERME
26(a)) °

BREWFEEERUNPEN T HEEES -
“ERFETRAFHEER °

HEHRN

ZEREMERN T ——F+ A=t HNAARE
ETKIEBL A& B REEHEMBERITAETAM
B HEDREZEVER T ——F+-A=1+—
BHARTEERE - 25 WENE2REETS LA
B BMIHERPINER L BORETHE - YNES
RENMUREREEONE SR FERAEEBY
ENMEHRBELEIERDEE -

T B A B fY R

(a) RHEARNRE

Company
PN

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted, at cost FELT - RAANE 112,147 112,147
Capital contribution to a subsidiary m—MRNBARIHE 11,700 11,700
Financial guarantees granted to subsidiaries BRFHB A BB S IER 8,636 7,658
132,483 131,505
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 16.

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited
liability company, as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE

M8 X B AR (47

(@) RKEIRNREE)

RIB——F+_A=+—REEZMNERF
(ORBRATHFFAT -

Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
Bl ae BRTRBRE
ARER kit LERE/EMER FEAE R AR R TEEK(EX )
Directly Indirectly
E# A
New Heritage Corporation Limited* British Virgin Islands 347 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
(ECEERAR) (“BVI") UTREREELIET RERR
RBRARES
New Heritage Development Limited Hong Kong (“HK") 156 shares of HK$1 each - 90%*  Investment holding
MEEREARAR 00 156l BRREELE T REER
New Heritage Investments Limited HK 6,260,000 shares of HK$10 each - 100% Investment holding
HELERRAR £ 6,260,000/ BREE10# T BEAER
New Heritage (IP) Limited* BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Holding of trademark of
GhE(EF)BERAR)* KEARRES IREREGEIET the Group
REASERE
New Heritage Land Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding
MEMEBRAR 0 IREREEDET REAER
New Heritage Management Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Administration vehicle of
MEEEERAR 5 IRBREELET the Group (HK)
RRASETRIE
(&%)
New Heritage Properties Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding
MENERRAR EE IREREELET REER
Prosper View Group Limited HK 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 46%*  Investment holding
BAEBARAR EiE 10,0005 BREELET BREAER
World Margin Limited HK 800,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Treasury vehicle of
HREB A 9 800,000 BREELAT the Group (HK)
REASERNTETE
(&%)
Healthy Castle Investments Limited* BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding**
REREFRAF EERRARES IREREEIET RERER
Suzhou Garden Villa Development & PRC (Note (a)) US$20,550,000 - 86%*  Properties development
Management Co., Ltd.* REI(fiEa)) 20,550,000% 7T and investment (PRC)
HMBRERERERERBRAA MEBRRIRE (FE)
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HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

16. RKEQRERZ)

(@) RIEQIENREGE)

Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
MR BRTRAR
AR ER kit EERE/EMEA EitRAaER TRER(EXHH)
Directly  Indirectly
Ef# G
Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$26,600,000 - 55%*  Properties development
BB EERAR" RE(HiE b)) 26,600,000 7T and investment (PRC)
MEERRIRE (PE)
Suzhou New Heritage Wuzhong Limited*  PRC (Note (b)) US$3,000,000 - 54%*  Properties development
BMEERRLR" B iz ) 3,000,000%7 and investment (PRC)***

NEBRLRE (RE)

Suzhou New Heritage WZA Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$7,000,000 - 100% Properties development
BN ERR AR Bl b)) 7,000,000% 7T and investment (PRC)
MEZRERIFE(PE)
New Heritage WJA Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$33,000,000 - 94%*  Properties development
RIFEHMERRAR" REI(ATE b)) 33,000,000 7T and investment (PRC)
MEBRRIFE(FE)

& The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not * ZEWBARREE M BRI R EEBL
audited by BDO Limited. EERGTMEBERAREZ

i The company has been struck off from the BVI Government o ZARBEE-E——FRA—BRERB#
Register since 1 May 2011. BRAHSHNEL2MHERE -

***  0On 14 September 2011, the company has applied for deregistration o ZRRBERZT——FNA+MBREMNT
at the Suzhou Bureau of Commerce. A BRRmEUEER ©

# Approximate percentage. # MABEDL ©

Notes: Bt

(@)  This subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint (a) HEMBARREFBREZELATINGES
venture under the PRC law. VNG

(b)  These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned (b) ZEMBRARREBFBRERELAIINEEE
enterprises under the PRC law. E -

(c) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end () MIEHR - BIENB AR BITERELEE
of the reporting period. % o

(h)  Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (h) R () ME A SIFE
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZERIBERR - BB RBANRERFFEE -

demand.
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17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE

17. REBE QR RRER

Group

AEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FiET
Share of net assets EIHEEFE (a) 133,870 124,321
Amount due from an associate FE UG — R B A I RIE (b) 436 436
134,306 124,757

Notes: HriE -

(a)

(b)

(c)

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

@ RNIB——F+_A=T—HBLEQRNFBENT

Percentage of

Company name operation interest held Principal activities
AL,
AREH FRIL IR b B FrEEsEE I EBER
Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.* PRC 30.05% Hotel ownership and property investment
EREHAREERAR" i BEBERMERE
Art Shine Limited* HK 40% Investment holding
BATERR AR BB REER
o The statutory financial statements of these associates are not * ZEMENRNEE R BRRLKEES L

audited by BDO Limited.

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

Summarised financial information of associates:

EREGHMEBIARITERZ

(b)  RBRFAREER 2B - BHAARSHRERT
TEAREE -

) HERTNWEEHBMRNAT

2011 2010

% —z-z5

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHBT

Revenue gy 329,730 282,258
Profit after income tax BRAT{SEi R &R 61,553 44,660
Non-current assets ERBEE 472,437 494,851
Current assets MBEE 93,827 45,181
Current liabilities MENEfE 91,469 93,539
Non-current liabilities B AE 29,398 32,864
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

18. DEFERRED TAXATION 18. ELEBIE

The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from temporary
differences are as follows:

EREREENELEHELEE (RE)NEBHMT

Group Company
b IUNG|
In respect of
Fair value withholding Convertible Convertible
adjustments I respect of tax for notes notes
on investment provision  undistributed equity equity
properties for LAT profits reserves Total reserves
REME BBt BEHAAR TRREER ARREE
AMEERE  LEHEE BRIEDR e #st e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THL THT THT
Balance as at 1 January 2010 R-ZE-ZF—A—HAEH (28,838) 1,880 (940) (340) (28,238) (340)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to PEEIR(NR) /BEH
the profit or loss (note 10) ERERE(HZ10) (4,054) - (1,096) 120 (5,030) 120
Exchange differences fEHER (858) 49 (32) = (841) =
Balance as at 31 December 2010 RZZE-FF+-_A=1+—-HK
and 1 January 2011 —F——%-A-Bnkk (33,750) 1,929 (2,068) (220) (34,109) (220)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited REFEENR) /BEE
to the profit or loss (note 10) BRERIB(HE10) (1,514) - (1,826) 220 (3,120 220
Exchange differences ER = (1,468) 82 (65) - (1,451) -
Balance as at 31 December 2011 R-B——&£+-H=1+-R
k33 (36,732) 2,011 (3,959) = (38,680) -

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign-
invested enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and
an associate established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. The deferred tax liabilities in respect of temporary
differences attributable to undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
and associates have been recognised in profit or loss.

REBHEEEMSTUE - RPBEKIININE RERE
SMREETIRAIIE RIZI0% BN TEINN © BIRER
“EENF-A-BRER BAR_ETLF+
A=+—HUAREENEF - HhBEEFHRIMIE
EMEN AR BRI ARBHE - AR EER
RIEMFAMBE - AKEM S - ERAHERL%HK
10% ° Eit - AEBEARRHER M B AR R —
Rl E ARR BT N\FE—H—AREENRNAR
DIRE BB BMTENT - B BIMTE AR R AR
R AR D IR B (R B E 5 ORIE TR A B AR
ARAAERR ©
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd) 18. IELEBIE (&)
The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for MU BREENMS  BEHIEEHROTTOT ¢

financial reporting purposes:

Group Company
rEH KATF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF —E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT FExT FAET
Deferred tax assets EERIBE = 2,011 1,929 = =
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIAA & (40,691) (36,038) = (220)
(38,680) (34,109) - (220)
The amounts of the deferred tax assets not recognised during the year FARRERELERIBEERZBIOT -
are as follows:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Tax effect of: BBeE
— unused tax losses —RBARIBERE 786 2,630
Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been recognised in the R AT AR S 0 TE S 1B A0 AR SR A1 2 A9 7 o] T8
financial statements due to the unpredictability of future profit streams M MW AR R BB EEREEHIEE
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses of the B o IR B ERN B A AR FIE E 18 Al 45855 -
subsidiaries operating in the PRC can be carried forward for 5 years and MRBEBEENIE AR BIEEERBRTRES
tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong will not be expired TEfEm e

under the current tax legislation.

Company PG|
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have any RZE——FRZZF-ZTF+_A=+—H ' AQA
significant unprovided deferred taxation. W BRI EARBEIELETIA -
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HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

19. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT — GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

19. BRPUEX-FKH

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT

Amounts comprise: SREEE
Construction costs JEE= AP N 176,059 154,222
Land use rights + b A RE 266,676 367,022
Interest capitalised FMEERE 3,321 -
446,056 521,244

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of interest incurred

eligible for capitalisation in 2011 was 3.15% (2010: 5.81%).

Properties held under development included leasehold interests in land

located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2047 to 2077.

As at 31 December 2011, certain leasehold interests in land of
approximately HK$210,978,000 (2010: HK$315,710,000) were pledged

to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

T —FAREENA BRGNS SENE
AEF|EB315%(ZF—TF : 581%) ©

SRR I3 T R A T R -
—BMLEE-TLEEMER -

HEHH

RZZTE——F+-A=+—H ' £210,978,000/E T
(Z=—Z4 : 315,710,000/ L) ME T L EE
D RAEBERNE TIRITER T A (K&
26(a)) °

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE — GROUP 20. FEYX—FKE
Properties held for sale included leasehold interests in land located in FEVELBEUNPEMN A EREZ  HEHH=
the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2077. TR—FE_TLLFHEM
As at 31 December 2011, the carrying value of the leasehold RZTE——F+-A=+—0 T HERSNERR
interests in land amounted to approximately HK$77,998,000 (2010: {E49577,998,000/8 7T ( —Z—Z 4 : 29,980,000/%
HK$29,980,000). JT) °
21. INVENTORIES - GROUP 21. FE-FKH
Inventories represent low value consumables carried at cost. FEEREAABEARNEES KD °
22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22. FEUWERRX
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—ET——F T -TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FaxT FHET
Accounts receivable FEUBR TR 84 41
Less: Provision for impairment R B = -
84 41
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22.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (contd)

Accounts receivable generally have credit terms of 30 to 60 days (2010:
30 to 60 days) and no interest is charged. All accounts receivable are
denominated in Renminbi. The ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts
receivable is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——&+-_F=+—HILFE

PEWR BR AR (42)
FRER 0 S B I — MR A30E60K (=B — 24 : 30

E60K) BAFE © FRERYERFTIAARBFHE - A
SEEYERRAOBREDTIT

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 30 days 30KAA 63 21
31-60 days 31—60X = -
61-90 days 61—90X = 20
91-120 days 91-120X = -
121-365 days 121-365K 21 -
84 41

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value as this financial asset, which is measured at
amortised cost, is expected to be paid within a short timescale, such that
the time value of money impact is not significant.

Accounts receivable which are past due are analysed as follows:

FEUE MR ERR AR BRI AN EE - BHZE
SREETIZEHKATIER - WIRHIREHAAT -
At - WEBANESREZE

BHREBERRDTAT

Group
AREH
2011 2010
—T——fF —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fully performing under credit term ZEEHZEEE 63 21
Past due but not impaired B EE ARORE 21 20
84 41

Past due but not impaired receivables represent rental income. The
directors consider that these receivables would be recovered and no
provision was made against past due as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s accounts receivable
are individually assessed to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables, if any, are recognised based on the credit history of its
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and
current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment provision
is recognised. The accounts receivable represents rental income from
leasing properties. Monthly rents are normally received in advance and
sufficient rental deposits are held to minimise credit risk.

As at 31 December 2011, accounts receivable of approximately
HK$63,000 (2010: HK$21,000) was neither past due nor impaired.
These related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

BHERBERKTIASESRA - EEZRRZTE
WHRIAR T4 E - AR - ——F R -T2 —2F
TZA=t—BAERAMZAELEE -

REERR - NEEHRUGRFERIFERE @5
BERYERR(NE) HRBEEE S E R (it
BB SRR KRB MR - Fit - ERER
FERERHE - RUSRSIEHEDENBS WA - &
AMESBERAKE - WA EHHESIESE WK
EERE o

E’\ i——¢+ H=+—H  £%#) /563,000 T

—Z4F : 21,0008 7T ) B FE UL BR SR AR 8 HA SRk
B ?{Klﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé%’ﬁﬂﬁE@E%ii%i)f'ﬁ
-
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23. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. B¢ - AREER M EWEIE
RECEIVABLES

Group
REME

2011 2010

—E——F ZE-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Deposits paid and prepayments BfHES RIEFE 18,955 11,210

Other receivables HoAth e WkIE 29,997 21,125

48,952 32,335

24.

The carrying amounts of deposits paid and other receivables approximate

to their fair values and those are neither past due nor impaired.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts

payable is as follows:

24.

EfNRe REMEUGANEREERE R A BER

- A e -
PEAS BREX

REBEEMNRRORREREZADTNOT -

Group

rER
2011 2010
—2——F T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaF FET FAT
Within 30 days 30KLAA 171 106
31-60 days 31—60X 64 93
61-90 days 61—90K = 93
91-365 days 91—365K 70 194
Over 365 days 365K E 1,253 1,160
Rent received on behalf of landlords REFWENES (a) 1,558 1,646

Accrued construction cost and other project- FEETIEESER AN R E B B AHER X

related expenses (b) 88,307 86,237
89,865 87,883

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s
accounts payable are considered to be a reasonable approximation of

fair value.

Notes:

(a) Rent received on behalf of landlords comprised net rental received from
tenants after netting off fee charged to them provided by external service

providers.

(b) Included in the above amounts are construction cost and other project-
related expense payable amounted to approximately HK$88,307,000 (2010:
HK$86,237,000) as at 31 December 2011 which were accrued based on
the terms of the relevant agreements and the progress of the projects, and

were not due for payment as at 31 December 2011.

P B s IR R B IR - BUAS SR B A BR R BR T (L8

BEREAAEBESIERE

() ARETUENESBEREFEEINESRINR
B RER PTUER B AR RTS8 -

(b) LREEEBER-ZE——Ft+=

A=+—RMENZ

SR K EoAth IR B 4B RER 2 4988,307,0008 T (— &
—Z 4 : 86,237,000/ 70 ) * 2 BIVIRIEIER e
HREIRBERER  ARZE——F+-A=+—

B AR BIEI AT o

WEERERAT —T——FER 89



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

25.

26.

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER
PAYABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——&+-_F=+—HILFE

EEtER  ERRERAMENRER

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——5F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Deposits received B iz & 41,556 40,381
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H A FE 5RIE 47,928 31,601
89,484 71,982

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s
accruals, deposits received and other payables are considered to be a
reasonable approximation to their fair values.

PrE TR HIFUR - RAKEETER - EldRE
REMENFRNRRERREARER A BERIE
BE -

BORROWINGS 26. &8
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E2——5F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Current liabilities nEAE
Portion of term loans from banks due for AR —F AR HEED
repayment within one year TFHIRITE R E D 135,384 227,279
Portion of term loans from banks due for BR— Efﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ’]
repayment after one year which contain a BERERERKERN
repayment on demand clause TEHRITERE S 51,863 35,242
Loans from non-controlling shareholders SEIERRAR R E R - 23,475
187,247 285,996
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 77,982 57,348
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEIEAR AR R B R 112,672 91,223
190,654 148,571
377,901 434,567
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable FFERITER(BREAREREENTHER) HikE

on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that is classified as a current liability is expected to
be settled within one year.

AT - AR —FRIBEENESHEREER
ER AN ERRE B ENE RS ARBER—

RA

FREME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

.

—— A=t BLEE

26. BORROWINGS (contd)

Borrowings were repayable as follows:

B RS ERAR B AL

26. fEE(#)

REEREEWT

Group
REE
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
izt FExT FHT
Within one year —FR
Term loans, unsecured TEEER - EIEH (c) 9,833 2,843
Term loans, secured TEHER - BEA (a), (c) 125,551 224,436
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, IR R E R - EE A
unsecured (b) - 23,475
In the second year FFERN
Term loans, unsecured TEEER - EIER (c) 6,266 2,530
Term loans, secured TEHER - HEA (a), (c) 66,512 35,636
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, IR R E K - EE A
unsecured (b) 92,748 -
In the third to fifth year =ERF
Term loans, unsecured TEEER - EIEH (c) 6,014 6,037
Term loans, secured TFHER - BEA (a), (c) 43,855 33,183
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, FEIRRARRE R - EE A
unsecured (b) 19,924 91,223
After the fifth year AFELAE
Term loans, secured TEHER - HEA (a), (c) 7,198 15,204
377,901 434,567

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Bank loans were secured by pledge of certain leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and properties held under development of the Group
(note 14, 15 and 19).

Loans from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, interest-free. The
loans were initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost which was estimated by discounting the nominal value of the
loans at market interest rate. During the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Group has renegotiated the terms of certain loans with non-controlling
shareholders. The directors considered that such revision did not represent
a modification of the original loans and accordingly, the extinguishment
accounting has been adopted to derecognise these existing loans and
new loans are recognised at their fair values. The resulting adjustment
of approximately HK$1,641,000 is recognised in consolidated statement
of changes in equity as a capital contribution from the non-controlling
shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group renegotiated the terms
of these loans with non-controlling shareholders. The directors considered
that such revision did not represent a modification of the original loans and
accordingly, the extinguishment accounting was adopted to derecognise
these loans and recognise new loans at their fair values. The resulting
adjustment of approximately HK$4,573,000 was recognised in consolidated
statement of changes in equity as a capital contribution from the non-
controlling shareholders.

As at 31 December 2011, the effective interest rates of the loan were in the
range of 1.60% to 4.10% (2010: 1.60% to 6.75%) per annum.

far -

(a)

(b)

RITEFRUAAREEE THE LM RET  REWEIA
RERPYHEHELL - 15R19)EFER -

FEERARERAEER R LS - ZRERELRD
AEBEER  ERIZEHKATIRR - BHRATIAT
BREFRZBAERNEAERSH - RBE-F
——F T A=t BIEFE  AREEIHERRR
EENE TEROGR - EFRR/BREETLER
BREER  RORAMHEIHER LRRBZERA
BRI RN A BEERHER o FREEL1,641,000
BT HBR AR AR BB R AR AIFERRR T

BEZ-ZF+-_A=+—HALFE  KEEHEF
BRI REMEER AR BRI GRK - EFARERE
M NHEREFE EROERIERT - MO RAPHE
FOERRILERZIEN - WRE AR EERATE
K e FTEEAE#)4,573,0008 TREREAEDZEHR
NFERRIFEBRRHE

R=B——F1+-A=t—H  BRERHENTE
F1.60%E4.10%(—F—FF : 1.60%=£6.75%) 2
CE
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26.

27.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RAL%FE

BORROWINGS (Contd) 26. fEE(#)

Notes: (Cont'd) Hiat - ()

(c) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in (c) ERRENRER G EENTETERB AR -
the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand s R IREREBERNTE « ZS5SEERY
clause. These borrowing bore floating interest rates. BRIRETE o

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following EEREEIA NS AHESELN - RNIEEIERD

currencies and have the following effective interest rates at the end of the BERF=ZRMT -

reporting period:

Group
REE
2011 2010
—g——% —T-%F
Effective interest Effective interest
rate per rate per
annum, as at annum, as at
HK$'000 31 December 2011 HK$'000 31 December 2010
R=g——% —T-T5
t=A=+-8 +=A=+-8
FHET B FERI=E FHET M EREF| =

Hong Kong dollars BT 64,941 1.33% - 4.10% 59,592 1.07% - 6.75%

United States dollars EiH 120,342 1.60% — 2.53% 99,091 1.60% —2.60%

Renminbi AR 192,618 5.56% - 6.90% 275,884 5.13% - 5.96%

377,901 434 567

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with the covenants of the AEBTHEREEFHERETEREPRITHE
banking facilities, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the ZORPETIER WRABRBRNEEEELETZER
term loans and does not consider it probable that the banks will exercise JE ¢ RIT AR TE EMISHESER - A5ER
their discretion to demand repayment for so long as the Group continues A RBERMNME S FIBHNHFE304 c RZT
to meet these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management ——FRZT-TFF+A=+—H  AEBEWEE
of liquidity risk are set out in note 39.4. As at 31 December 2011 and REURER B AR A MR -

2010, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES 27. TEEREE

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a Convertible Notes
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Asia Financial Holdings
Limited (“AFH") and Asia Insurance Company, Limited (“AICL")
(AICL is a subsidiary of AFH which is controlled by the associates
of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, the non-executive director
of the Company). Pursuant to the Agreement, AFH and AICL
agreed to acquire the convertible notes (the “2007 Notes”) at
HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively, in total of the
principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of 5% per
annum, payable in arrears on a quarterly basis on 31 March, 30 June,
30 September and 31 December of each year between the date of
issue of the 2007 Notes and the maturity date. The maturity date was
60 months from the date of issue of the 2007 Notes.

The 2007 Notes were not transferable and not allowed for redemption
before the maturity date. Unless previously converted, the Company
was obliged to redeem the 2007 Notes on the maturity date at the
redemption price of 110% of the principal amount of the 2007 Notes
outstanding together with accrued interest payables.

REZZZLFNA+TA - ARFHEG MR EE(F
BOBRAR(TEMER]) REMRBEER LR (R
INERER 1) BTS2 FT#a e SRR R BB 19 a8 ([ 3 1) (SR M
RerilemzMBRE  DMeRIBARAFIE
WITESREDREZHEAZEY) - REWE -
oM Bl K S N AR R [R] B 2 5l A 50,000,000 7T Ko
25,000,000/ TTREZ & #25875,000,00078 T Y AI #4
BEBR(—ZTLFRIE]) - FRERRE% - AR
ERFRERTHREIHEPREF=A=1—
B -"B=tB "AA=tBERtZA=+—B%ZF
SASRITEARE - BB A RE — TR FREETAY
#ET60ME A -

“RELERERIEE YEAESHAMTAE
|l - fRZAIE B EIN  RRRAEERIHRZE
BT TR LFRBASENI0%ERELREN
MERBELREELD _TTLFRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd)

The principal amount of HK$35,000,000 (HK$25,000,000 for AFH and
HK$10,000,000 for AICL) of the 2007 Notes should be compulsorily
converted at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days
if the closing price per share of the Company was HK$1.10 or higher for
ten consecutive trading days during the period between the date of issue
of the 2007 Notes and five business days prior to the maturity date.

In addition, the 2007 Notes could be converted by the holder into
ordinary shares of the Company at any part of the principal amount of
the 2007 Notes in the multiple of HK$25,000,000, at a conversion price
of HK$1.10 per share, at any time during the period between the date of
issue of the 2007 Notes and the maturity date.

68,181,818 was the maximum number of ordinary shares that could be
converted.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the 2007 Notes were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
17 August 2007 and 10 September 2007 respectively.

The 2007 Notes were issued to AFH and AICL on 15 October 2007.

The fair values of the 2007 Notes were determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by Norton Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent professional valuers with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative
instruments with reference to market values.

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the 2007
Notes were as follows:

The fair value of the liability component was calculated based on the
present value contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with reference
to the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes and
remaining time to maturity.

The residual amount, representing the value of the equity component,
was included in the equity attributable to owners of the Company in
convertible notes equity reserves, net of deferred tax.

B TSR AR B RE

27. BRERE)

ME-—ZELFRERETEAERMBAAMRMEEE
BHREE T AR S ENARBERKHERLIOE
AL R - BT FRIBH A 35,000,000
7 7T (ZE M & RE /525,000,000 7T+ 1 ae MR &
10,000,000/ 7T ) AR L8 & % H R fli%1.10/8 7T
M BRE L -

AN BEAUR - ERLEREBHTERAERHA
RN EAREZER]LI0BTHRRER -_TZ L
FEBATENEMHD LBA/ARABEB - i
BAZ8 425,000,000 T 52K

AR RSB E B LR 568,181,818 -

—EREFERRNIEK G RE - FHBDBIRA
RAAMA-ZEZLF AT AR —EELFNA
THHAERBRPHE -

BR-EELETA+EARTMNE RETNREE
ToTBLERE -

“ERLEEBNAABERARRERZZEHE
BRHME AR ARMELNMGERETE - EREBRFEAER
RADERBEERNBLEXRMAERRM  BAE2ED
EFHMEERLTET A MR I HEER -

“EREFERRHERIRBNERBRRAT

BEBINAAEBEERANEENAIASRER
BE W R RAREFTE - MRERSEERBFE
T % SRR 6 T 35 ) R K B HA B AT 6 TR R B R

-
TE °

MRERIERR MO MEE  SEABREERERFHED
ARATBEREAERER (NRERERE)A -
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27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (cContd)

On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with AFH and AICL in relation to the issue of the 2011 convertible notes
(the “2011 Notes”) at HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively,
in total of the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of
6% per annum, payable in-arrears on a quarterly basis on 31 March,
30 June, 30 September and 31 December of each year between the
date of issue of the 2011 Notes and the maturity date. The maturity date
is 36 months from the date of issue of the 2011 Notes. Pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, the Company, AFH and AICL acknowledged
and confirmed that it was the intention of the parties that the proceeds
to be obtained from the issue of the 2011 Notes should be applied
towards the redemption of the 2007 Notes on the date of completion.
Accordingly, notwithstanding that the 2007 Notes did not provide for
any early redemption thereof, the Company, AFH and AICL agreed that,
subject to the presentation of the original of the certificates for the 2007
Notes to the Company, all the 2007 Notes should be redeemed by the
Company on the date of completion at the redemption amount. On
30 September 2011, the subscription price of the 2011 Notes payable
by the AFH and AICL was immediately applied by the Company to set-
off part of the redemption amount for redemption of the 2007 Notes.
A premium on a pro rata basis upon the actual holding period over the
original period and the interest accrued thereon up to the redemption
date amounting to HK$6,885,000 was paid to the AFH and AICL. Upon
redemption, the 2007 Notes were cancelled.

The 2011 Notes are not transferable and will not be allowed for
redemption before the maturity date. Unless previously converted, the
Company is obliged to redeem the 2011 Notes on the maturity date at
the redemption price of 110% of the principal amount of the 2011 Notes
outstanding together with accrued interest payables.

The principal amount of HK$35,000,000 (HK$25,000,000 for AFH
and HK$10,000,000 for AICL) of the 2011 Notes shall be compulsorily
converted at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business
days if the closing price per share of the Company is HK$1.10 or higher
for ten consecutive trading days during the period between the date of
issue of the 2011 Notes and five business days prior to the maturity date.

In addition, the 2011 Notes can be converted by the holder into ordinary
shares of the Company at any part of the principal amount of the 2011
Notes in the multiple of HK$25,000,000, at a conversion price of
HK$1.10 per share, at any time during the period between the date of
issue of the 2011 Notes and the maturity date.

68,181,818 is the maximum number of ordinary shares that can be
converted.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the 2011 Notes were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
5 July 2011 and 25 July 2011 respectively.

The 2011 Notes were issued to AFH and AICL on 30 September 2011.

The difference between the redemption amount and the carrying
amount of the liability component represents a loss on extinguishment of
convertible notes of approximately HK$829,000 which has been charged
to profit or loss.

27.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RAL%FE

TR EE (Z)

RIZB——F+LARA  AAREDMERKREME
% 5t 9 Bl #2 50,000,000 7% 7T K 25,000,000 7T 3% 1T
“2——FuBRER( -2 ——FFE DFRE
ek - N&E & $£75,000,000/8 7T - FEFIER6% -
AR E——FRRETHHNEN B HREF=H
=t+—H RA=TH AA=ZFTEAKRTZA=+—
BREXMNAHSNE - BHERE T —FREH
TR HEE36MEA - RERBHH - ARF - M
SR N EMRBRERREETOE T NERBES
BT T —FRBEMBHREARETKASED
“TEAERE - At @ _TTLFRBAET
BEMREFERGK - EARE - ENERERIMR
BEREERMARFER - EBLFRBESEARR -
e —EELFRBEHERAARFETK A BRED
CHER R -Z——FNAA=TH > ATMNERKR
SMRBRENN T ——FRERBEC R HAR
AIPAEERERLN T FRENHBOBLOISHE
HERRSA P REMMEL A ENRES N EE
EfEM@ A %S R BB S 6,885,000 TTE A
FTEMEBEENMRE - —Z2LFRBENERE

—E-—FERIEE YEAEINPAMTAE
B - BrZRERMEIN  ARRARERIBAR
“E—FRBEASENII0NEREENENFE
AEREER T ——FZK -

ME T —FERETEAZINHAMAMEEE
P HREE T EXS AENARAERKHERLI0E
T L - Bl ZFE——F R KA E 535,000,000
7 7t (25 M & @t 425,000,000 7T+ 1M 2B AR BR A&
10,000,000/ 7T ) AR M8 % B A58 613 1. 108 T
B SLHAE S -

SN - HEARTR S —— S E2RETEBEIHA
HARI MBS IR B L. IO TR R BB —T——
FEREASBENTMID LBARNAGLER - g
$E/8 425,000,00008 TTHI (S 2K o

AR TR RS R LR R68,181,818M

R FEZRNERRGHHE S FBEDRIRA
RAEMA T ——FtARAAKR-_ZE——%tH
T HAMRERBRHRRE

ER-E——FhA=TBERTMNEm &M R
T-ZE——%FE-
BEDOED SR EREE 2 FOZ R IHA
IR R B E1E49829,000/8 7T - ERNEERF R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—&+-_F=+—HILFE

27.

B TSR AR B RE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd) 27. AIRRERE®E)
The extinguishment accounting has been adopted to derecognise the DHEAMHEEEARIIER-_SETLEEE M
2007 Notes and the 2011 Notes are recognised at their fair value. The :T\——im;g,au BHEALBERER T ——
fair values of the liability component and the equity component of the FEBENABGER O RERBINAREERET
2011 Notes were determined at the issuance of the 2011 Notes. T im}ﬂq?‘fg °
The fair values of the 2011 Notes were determined with reference to the —E—FERNARLBEDNZEEEZITIEENGE
valuation performed by DTZ, a firm of independent qualified professional EET Eiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁg;ﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁjﬁifﬁﬁﬁfﬁ B
valuers with appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the ELETEMMGEUTE TR EES I HKS
valuation of similar derivative instruments with reference to market
values.
The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the 2011 — FERLERRAN AR BERNAT ¢
Notes are as follows:
The fair value of the liability component was calculated based on the BEBINARBEENSNETHARKREREE
present value contractually determined stream of future cash flows HMEWS KRR ETE - METWEZRHEE
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with reference T EE TR R R R A BT RS S
to the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes and E °
remaining time to maturity.
The fair value of the equity component was calculated based on the BRI NARBEENEEEERAFE  sTAR
option pricing model, which was included in the equity attributable to AR R RS A TR AN A R R FE(HREES A ©
owners of the Company in convertible notes equity reserves.
The convertible notes recognised in the statement of financial position RBTIEIRR R AFER A A R EE IR N 5 5t
are calculated as follows: g
Group and Company
EEBRAEAT
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Fair value of convertible notes AHREERNAEE 69,400 75,000
Equity component HEZREB D (900) (3,650)
Liability component on initial recognition NEERBEILD 68,500 71,350
Net carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—B8EREFE 73,672 72,942
Interest expense (Note 8) FERZ(H1:28) 5,669 4,480
Interest paid EARFE (3,940) (3,750)
Redemption during the year FREE (74,226) -
Issue of the 2011 Notes at fair value BARBEET S ——FZE 68,500 =
Net carrying amount as at 31 December R+ ZA=1—BHREFE 69,675 73,672
The effective interest rate of the liability component is 13.38% (2010: BEBOINERFFEAEIZ38H (T —ZF :
6.28%) per annum. Interest expense on the convertible notes is 628%) ° EHQ REBRRFEFETIRE W |7
calculated using the effective interest method by applying the effective REEXPUNERNEAE -RZ2F—F+=A
interest rate to the liability component. As at 31 December 2011, the =t+—H ZE——FEBUARRBRAERRRER
2011 Notes were not converted into ordinary shares of the Company. A% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RAILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZE-TF
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
RHEE FERT gaE 4= FHT

Authorised: JETE ¢

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HRRMEEO0.01E LA @AY 30,000,000,000 300,000 30,000,000,000 300,000

Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRRMEE0.OLE LA B

At 1 January wW—HA—H 1,278,639,685 12,786 1,169,439,685 11,694
Issue of ordinary shares on exercise of R TEEEmETT

share options (Note 1) LR (AiED) 5,898,780 59 = =
Issue of ordinary shares (Note 2) BITE @AY (AT EE2) = - 109,200,000 1,092

At 31 December R+=B=+—8 1,284,538,465 12,845 1,278,639,685 12,786

Notes: HiaE -

1. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company issued 5,898,780 1. HEZZT——F+-A=1+—HILFE  ARAIFAE
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in relation to the exercise of the share SEETEERESRABESREEAR0.1915%8T
options by certain directors and employees of the Group at the subscription 1713 BB A% 4 T 35 775,898, 780 A% F I I {H0.0178 7T 1Y
price of HK$0.1915 per ordinary share (note 29). The difference between LB (MI5E29) - REEEHEEEA Z 51,070,000
the subscription price and par value amounting to HK$1,070,000 was TLEFFARMDEE © I - RZT——FETENE
credited to share premium. In addition, the portion of share option reserves % Y B AR A (R 1 50 0 B257,00078 T B B B = A
in relation to the exercise of the share options exercised during the year of AR R(E ©
2011 amounted to HK$257,000 was transferred to the Company’s share
premium.

2. For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company issued 109,200,000 2. HEZZT-TFF-A=1+—HILFE  ARAIFMN

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in relation to the acquisition of leasehold
land and buildings from one of its related parties at a consideration of
HK$27,300,000, which has been determined based on a discount of 30%
to their fair values of HK$39,000,000, at an issue price of HK$0.25 per
ordinary share. The purchase has been accounted for as a share-based
payment transaction in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
(“HKFRS 2"). The leasehold land and buildings have been recognised at
their fair values of HK$39,000,000 based on a valuation of DTZ, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers. The difference between
the subscription price and par value of total issued shares amounting
to HK$26,208,000 and the 30% discount to fair values of the leasehold
land and buildings amounting to HK$11,700,000 were credited to the
Company’s share premium (notes 34(a)(iv) and 37).

27,300,0007% 7T B9 (R 18 (IR E A Jt {81839,000,000/%
TCHTHR30% MEE ) MAR ) HA — B REATRE
T E £ 4 & 42 5 M 297 109,200,0000% & A I E0.01
BITRLBAR - BITEASRYAR0.25FT - BE
FEIERBE SRS ERIFE 25 AR BEERR
K[ EBPIEIRE LR E25% 1) 51 BR B ARRS Z4 8
X5 o ME T MEFEIRE N/ B(E39,000,0007
TR - BEAABEDNREBE A EREEMER
RERTETNGETESE - ERTROLHENR
BB B A (E A 2 5826,208,00008 T R E L RET
AR BEFEI0BHEEE11,700,0008TTEFHARR
AR D= E (M15E34(a) (iv) ]&37) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

29.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to the written resolutions of all the then shareholders passed on
14 November 2005, the Company has conditionally adopted the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) for employee compensation.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants for their contributions to the
Group and for such other purposes as the board of directors (the “Board”)
may approve from time to time.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite any
executive or non-executive directors including independent non-
executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies;
any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established by any
employees, executive or non-executive directors of each member of the
Group or its associated companies; any consultants, professional and
other advisers to each member of the Group or its associated companies
(or persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed for providing
such services); any chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company; any associates of any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company; and any employees (whether full-time or
part-time) of substantial shareholders of the Company, provided that the
Board may have absolute discretion to determine whether or not one
falls within the above categories, (together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up options (“Option(s)”) to subscribe for shares at
a price determined in accordance with the paragraph below.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the Board
would take into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion
consider appropriate.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Scheme is adopted, after which
period no further Options will be granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect, and
Options which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued pursuant to the
exercise of Options granted hereunder shall be a price solely determined
by the Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at least the
highest of:

(a)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the business day on which an offer is
accepted by the grantee or if such date of acceptance by the
grantee is not a business day, the immediately preceding business
day;

29.

B RS ERAR B AL

BARRAD 32 A4 B 12 5 5 B

BEERF2BREN_ZZAF+— A THAEBH
EERFR - ARBC A G R EEST &I ([ 25T
g1 (EREEFHM -

ZEtEIE EBARBABEEN L - B2 REHAE
ENERMEESS((E5E )R T EHILENEMLE
B BT2EEIYE - 2B B - BBk A

Bl

B8 EFSRRNBEELARR - EREARF
KEE R BEMBITRIERITES - BB
TESEHEMES (TRIEBEFE) - FEEZKE
RAFEBERRNEMEER - RITHIERITEEM
RIHERETNENEEZRA  ARESKER
A EB 2 ARNEMHEAA - EREALREAMER
(FMEEAREZERBOAL - BITHQE) - K
REEMEZTHABREEZRR : ARAUEME
= IEBTBRABRTZRROEFMBEA - RAR
AEERRNEMRERE (THREBAFRE)  EES
SR EENEEEEMALTREEN LR (Lt
ANTHEARATE28% ) - ARKERE (B
D) WARER T HEE R ER BB -

REEE2EENBERIZER  EFSREEEME
BERBIRENESE -

Zat BB ERA ARG AR A +F - ERIET
SRROERE EEMEEMIE - ZatEIREX
DEBTRBAORMER - NZt IR AR B AR
REFR B B AR T THE -

IRIBAN SR H B BB R E T T (R T 31T O B ARAR (D YRR
BE ShEFBEEETRAG2EE  MREE
RERUAKRSERE) :

(a) MBABARAZEMNEZER (R HEK
RABRMERLIEZERR - AAEERZ AR
5 H DB P B R TR U E
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29.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd)

(b)  a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date on which an offer
is accepted by the grantee (provided that the new issue price shall
be used as the closing price for any business day falling within the
period before listing of the shares where the Company has been
listed for less than 5 business days as at the date on which an
offer is accepted by the grantee); and

(c)  the nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of commencement of dealings in
the shares on the Stock Exchange (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), unless
the Company obtains an approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

On 14 April 2011, an ordinary resolution regarding the refreshment
of Scheme Mandate Limit was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Starting from
14 April 2011, further options to subscribe up to 127,863,968 ordinary
shares of the Company, being 10% of the total number of shares in issue
on the date of AGM are available to be granted under the Scheme.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme, the maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme and the option to which the Offer relates
shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken effect when
the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the Offer
duly signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting thereof is
received by the Company within 14 days from the date upon which the
Offer is made.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in equity.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE

29. RGO NHEEHM 2

(b) BEBOEAR AN RESXABTH
R AT IMAOAD FIGU T E (HEMA R RN E
HEARANEWEBRIE LB BRI RAE
B - RIFTEITERBERD £ AR E
e AnEmE) &

() —RBHEE-

RITEREZT 8 R AR BEA E A B A 2R
BT A T BTN AR B - & KSR
XM EEE BB ETIROMABE10% ([ 51 81#%
ERREE ) - AR BBUSBRAHLERIRRIN o FHEZ
10%RFRI Nt RARIR LT BIERRT RN EBAAE

R-T——FEA+MA - —REHERERED
TRRBENERBEAE ([RRBFAE ) LEA
NEPREFHAE - B -_FT——FWUA+EBRE  BIEZ
e TE -SRI RE &S E 127,863,968 A R
AIEBRABEE - BERNECRBFAS AR %7
BAD BN 10%

BEZA B A A EAEMBRTE - RITEZEEIRAR
B E AR A AT I E R BB mARI TR A R
TTERBRER - REARITHORNDEE TEBB T
BT ALBHI30% °

BROFERCRALE - WEF+—EABRRTER T &
F2EENERE(BIERITEREARITEABRE)
2 BT R T EITHROAE - MSRBE BTR
DHEEEN 1% ©

E28E (ERA D URIRZE SN G AR
BEHNTEDY])  RERERRY - MERBEN
EHNBENEIAHARAZARE - WEARAFE
HENE BRIAANRN - BEAR AR KR RER
ARANRA 1008 TTIERR LB R ER -
HENABNBEREARRASCRHIL AR -

PR AR ST RO 1R B Hr o i i s R AE -
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URHIZAHNEESM 2)
Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme NZTEB——F+ - A=+—H  ARaBREZT2IR
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2011 were as follows: i ARITEREIREBOT
Number of options
BRESA
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Date of grant Exercisable period 2010 and during during during 31 December price
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy 1 January 2011 the year the year the year 2011 per share
HK$
RZB-B%
TZA=1-A RZB—-%
RiiAH i kR=%-—-% RER RER BER +tZBE=t-H
A/R/& A/B/% -A—BiEE it (K Jor V&S ik BRTEE
B
Executive directors
HiTES
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence 29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - (3,200,000) - 0.3750
IHRSEE
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - = (4,571,000) - 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - (1,999,780) (1,744,220) - 0.1915
11,515,000 - (1,999,780) (9,515,220) =
Mr. Yim Chun Leung 29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - = (3,200,000) - 0.3750
BREAE
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - (4,571,000) - 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 = (3,744,000) = - 0.1915
11,515,000 - (3,744,000) (7,771,000) -
Employees of the Group 29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,300,000 - - (3,300,000) - 0.3750
r5EES
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 5,211,000 - - (5,211,000) - 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 800,000 = (155,000) (645,000) = 0.1915
9,311,000 - (155,000) (9,156,000) -
32,341,000 - (5898,780)  (26,442,220) -
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URHZfAMEESM2Z)
Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme RZZE—FF+=-—A=+—H  XARBEZEE
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 were as follows: i AR{TE R EIRREEB T -
Number of options
BREZA
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Date of grant Exercisable period 2009 and during during during 31 December price
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy 1 January 2010 the year the year the year 2010 per share
HK$
R-BEhE
+=A=1-H R-B-2%
RiLAH TS R=Z-%% RER RER RER +=B=t-H
A/B/% B/B/% —-A—-BiEs Bl it oy VS e BRTEE
BT
Executive directors
HiTES
Mr. Taochaifu Choofuang 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - (3,765,636) - 0.6350
(“Mr.C.F. Tao")
BEEEE 18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - = (3,600,000) - 0.5240
7,365,636 - = (7,365,636) =
Mr. Tao Richard 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - (3,765,636) - 0.6350
(“Mr. Richard Tao")
BRI 18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - = (3,600,000) - 0.5240
7,365,636 - = (7,365,636) =
Mr. Tao Paul (“Mr. Paul Tao") ~ 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - (3,765,636) - 0.6350
Gl
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - = (3,600,000) - 0.5240
7,365,636 - - (7,365,636) -
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - (3,765,636) - 0.6350
IRREE
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 = = (3,600,000) = 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - - 3,744,000 0.1915

18,880,636 = = (7,365,636) 11,515,000
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd)

29. RGN HEEHM 2

Number of options
g HE
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Date of grant Exercisable period 2009 and during turing during 31 December price
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy 1 January 2010 the year the year the year 2010 per share
HK$
RZZENE
+=B=+-H RZ2-%%
BB il R=%-%f% RER RER RER TZAZt-H
R/B/% R/B/% —-A-AM4&E Bl it ER/ X% ik BRTRE
B
Executive directors (Cont'd)
UnEE(E)
Mr. Yim Chun Leung 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - = (3,765,636) - 0.6350
- titayi
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 = = (3,600,000) = 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - - 3,744,000 0.1915
18,880,636 - = (7,365,636) 11,515,000
Employees of the Group 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 4,564,788 - - (4,564,788) - 0.6350
FEEESR
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 6,106,000 - = (6,106,000) = 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 4,900,000 - = (1,600,000) 3,300,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 8,006,000 - = (2,795,000) 5,211,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 800,000 - - - 800,000 0.1915
24,376,788 - - (15,065,788) 9,311,000
84,234,968 - = (51,893,968) 32,341,000
seemaman —=—=sg 101
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd)

Options outstanding and weighted average exercise price for the

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HEZZT—

29. RGN EEHM =2

RS R R R TE B A R 11T EE 2740

F+ZA=+—HILFE

reporting periods presented are as follows: o
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-FF
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
InFEFH IR
#E TEE A 1I(EE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding as at 1 January R—A—BXTE 32,341,000 0.29 84,234,968 0.46
Exercised 1T1E (5,898,780) 0.19 - -
Expired JE (26,442,220) 0.32  (47,498,968) 0.58
Lapsed KW - - (4,395,000) 0.33
Outstanding as at 31 December R+ A=+—HX1TE - - 32,341,000 0.29
Exercisable as at 31 December Rt+=-A=+—B77& = 32,341,000

For the year ended 31 December 2011, 5,898,780 options were
exercised and 26,442,220 options were expired pursuant to the Scheme.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, no option was exercised
and 47,498,968 options were expired pursuant to the Scheme. The
weighted average remaining contractual life of the Options outstanding at
31 December 2010 was approximately 0.57 years.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options
exercised during the year was HK$0.25 (2010: Nil).

BE-T——FT-ASt—ALEE RERE
& - 5,898,780 BEAREEATE » 5526,442,22017 B
BEEHE - BE-F—FF+_A=+—HIt#F
- REZEE - DREREELT(E - 247,498,968
BRREEDE - R-B—TET=A=+—A - ¥
AT T RSB A QM BOSTE -

FARNTEBHMMEFIRER05ET

T —TF ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—HLFE

30. RESERVES

(@) Group

30. f#f&

B RS ERAR B AL

(a) #H&£H

2011 2010
—B——F —TTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
Retained profits REBEF 141,017 131,782
Share premium &R E (i) 488,664 487,337
Share option reserves TERR R 1 = 1,968
Convertible notes equity reserves AR SIS R e R 900 3,011
Merger reserve EEE (ii) 89,936 89,936

Hotel property, plant and equipment SEIEYE - BB RS EEHHEE
revaluation reserve 19,276 16,811
Statutory reserve SRR (i) 31,069 28,173
Exchange reserve V& 55 124,479 88,339
895,341 847,357
Proposed final dividend (note 11) RORAREARR S (A75211) 3,854 6,393
899,195 853,750

The movements of the Group'’s reserves for the year are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

O]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Under the Companies Law (2011 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the excess of
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation completed
on 23 June 2005 over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

According to the relevant PRC Laws, companies established
in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of its net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. The transfer
of this reserve must be made before the distribution of
dividend to the entity’s equity owners. The statutory reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity.

Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$12,163,000 for the
year (2010: HK$18,061,000), loss of approximately
HK$19,609,000 (2010: profit of HK$21,591,000) has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company for
the year.

AEERBENFANES  RPBHREROGA
ERBERP 2T -

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

BREREHRERADE(ZE——FEFT
iR B EERA SR T AR BR
R EZEERRNREBHER - AAF
ARENEENAEEBEBIEHZHN
a7 °

FEBENAUHREE  RAEER-TE
HEFRAZ+=BRRNEAETKE
B AR RAEE - BHAREZE
BRAMETHARR B BDEERZEE -

RIBAERET BER - M BRI A
AR EEFHRRIEEORBURAR -
BERDI0%BREEXERHE  EEZR
BRESREEZATEMEARL0% - Wi
ARMAZARRBR DK SR EEE
R  EERBRATADIK - MZA
AERAIRRS

FARRBBREGRARAA
#4912,1630008 L ( =T — & fF :
18,061,000 B 7t ) © & BB 4
19,609,000 T (=T —ZTF : AF|
21,591,000 7T ) B IR AN 2 R 4F & B 75
WERPERIE -

FEZERARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-Z——F+-_A=1+—HIEE
30. RESERVES (Contd) 30. f#&E#)
(b)  Company (h) AAF
Share  Convertible Proposed
Share option notes equity  Contributed Retained final
premium reserves reserves surplus profits dividend Total
ARRERE
ROBE BRERE EEEE BHER  RERN BRRERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET THERT THET TET THER THEn
(note) (note) (note) (note) (note)
(Hizt) (Hizt) (Hiz) (Hizt) (Hiit)
Balance as at 1 January 2010 RZT-ZF—-HA—HH
ey 449,429 8,100 3,011 (22) 20,773 4,678 485,969
Profit for the year FERF - = = = 21,591 = 21,591
Issue of shares for the acquisition  FLUKEET &+t RIEFM
of leasehold land and buildings BRI (HT228)
(note 28) 37,908 - - - - - 37,908
Release upon expiry BEBREREN e
of vested share options - (6,132) - - 6,132 - -
2009 final dividend paid BENZZENEREKRE - - - - - (4,678) (4,678)
Proposed final dividend (note 11)  #RAKRERRR S (A5E11) - = = = (6,393) 6,393 =
Balance as at 31 December 2010 R =Z—ZF+—-H
and 1 January 2011 =+-BR=E—F
—RA—B&sH 487,337 1,968 3,011 (22) 42,103 6,393 540,790
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (19,609) - (19,609)
Arising from issue of ordinary RTEBRERTETRR
shares on exercise of share ME £ (#5228)
options (note 28) 1,070 - - - - - 1,070
Transfer (note 28) B (h28) 257 (257) = = = - -
Release upon expiry BSEEERET ke
of vested share options - (1,711) - - 1,711 - -
Redemption of convertible notes [HEEpAES = = (2,111) = 2,111 = -
2010 final dividend paid BN -SFEREKE - - - - - (6,393) (6,393)
Proposed final dividend (note 11)  #¥RAKERRLE (A7:711) - - - - (3,854) 3,854 =
Balance as at 31 December 2011 R-B—-F
+-ASt+-BMEH 488664 . 900 22 22,462 3854 515858
Note: These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s reserves of Wit - ZEREBEERVEARAMBMRAREANL AR
approximately HK$512,004,000 (2010: HK$534,397,000) in the NEFEE 512,004,000 T (Z T —ZT4F ¢
statement of financial position of the Company. 534,397,000 7T) ©
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess RARINEBEHRBL  AREER_TTRFA
of the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to A +=HEXKMEAF BN B RN E
the Group’s reorganisation completed on 23 June 2005 over EFE  BHABRNZEEEFEMBITHN
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange REIRHEERZERE ©
therefor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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31.

32.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

B RS ERAR B AL

31. XRHBITER

Group
TEME
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iokz3 FHET FAT
Analysis of restricted bank deposits: SZRRERITFERDMNT
Deposit pledged against mortgage loans granted 3t & % & ERIRIEE
to the purchasers of properties MRAHFR (a) 22,304 6,624
Restricted bank deposits SR HIERITIER (b) 70,556 12,088
92,860 18,712
Notes: Ha
(@) The bank deposits were pledged as security in favour of banks and financial (a) HIRRIZIBERERAR  EEBXEEMBEREME

(b)

institutions in the PRC which provided mortgage loan to purchasers of
properties for the period from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans
to the date when the certificates for housing ownership and certificates of
others’ interest for housing ownership (collectively known as “Certificates”)
are granted to the property purchasers. Such charges would be released
when the Certificates are granted to the property purchasers. This deposit
earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates.

In accordance with terms of banking facilities and regulation issued by local
government, certain property development companies of the Group are
required to maintain certain amount of cash at designed bank accounts for
securing the repayment of bank loans and wages payments to contractors’
workers for construction projects. The deposits earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposits rates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

BEMEEMEREMEE(REAIZEFERL -
RITEREERTERAEXEERIZBEFOER
RITR GRS (FRERR - ZFEREREXSE
EEXZEFRRRR o ZFFAT HRITHERFE -
RSN RS -

(b)  ARIRSRITRYE 2 (R RI T BRIFIRMAG AR B - A
ETYEBRARANMEERTRPERSESEN
R EREBRITERRRERAEBMNRZETA
FE o FHRAT RRITERFIR - LFBFIRES

32. RERBFETEEY

ReLREEEBYHITMT

Group Company
AEE P /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF —E2——fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHET FAT
Cash at banks and in hand RITFEFRES 265,725 422,108 5,353 140

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position are the following amounts denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the Group and the Company to which they

REBERRBRAORS LIRS EBE/Y - BETIIAR
SEMARRTNDEEEE AN EEIENESER

relate:
Group Company
TEE AATH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F T -TF —E——F —ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET F#ExT FAET
Renminbi AR 237,729 408,807 = =
United State dollars e 12,243 84 5 5)
seppaman —2—455 105
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—F+_A=+—AL=FE

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont) 32. RERREEEWE)
Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is approximately BHENREESEBYOEAEBRUARE BB FRF
HK$232,988,000 (2010: HK$403,957,000) of bank balances B Z KIBTTHIER 1T 45 82 49232,988,000/8 T ( —E—
denominated in Renminbi are deposited with banks in the PRC, the T4 : 403,957,000 7T) © ZEAARKBBALH
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign AEE5 H IR A INEE 78 5 ih B R T 2B B INEE B SR AR BT
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange PRI o
control promulgated by the PRC government.
The effective interest rate of cash at banks is in range of 0.01% to 3.10% WITETFHERENE A001%E3.10%(—E—F
(2010: 0.01% to 0.65%) per annum and they have maturity within 90 F :0.01%%E0.65%) ' WHIOH(=—ZE—=4F :30H)
days (2010: 30 days). AEIE] o
33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 33. #EERSREEASHS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EMS
Salaries,
allowance Contribution
and other Gratuity  to retirement
Fees henefit in kind and honus benefit scheme Total
e
REREAM Wi BikE
e BEYRs RIEA HEEER et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TiExT FTiEx FTET FTExT
2011 —E——F
Executive directors HTES
Mr. C. F. Tao MEETE - 1,252 503 88 1,843
Mr. Richard Tao PRATEAE - 1,808 727 127 2,662
Mr. Paul Tao PRSAE - 1,808 727 127 2,662
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence IR E = 1,808 724 127 2,659
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BIE=EE = 2,087 1,317 170 3,574
- 8,763 3,998 639 13,400
Non-executive director *HTES
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut R BEE 182 = = = 182
Independent non-executive directors BIEHTES
Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai IXREXE 242 - - - 242
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun RuB%E 182 = = = 182
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique BREE S E 182 = = = 182
606 - - - 606
788 8,763 3,998 639 14,188
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 33. EERERTEAEMES (2
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (contd)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a9 EEME(E)
Salaries,
allowance Contribution
and other Gratuity  to retirement
Fees benefit in kind and bonus  benefit scheme Total
Eric
AL R H A Hoylien BAE
we BEWFa RIEL FrEMER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FAT FHL FAL FHT
2010 —E-ZF
Executive directors HITES
Mr. C. F. Tao BEELE - 1,170 560 61 1,791
Mr. Richard Tao BRI RE - 1,690 809 88 2,587
Mr. Paul Tao [(GE e - 1,690 809 88 2,587
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence IR E = 1,690 807 91 2588
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BRI A = 1,950 930 105 2985
- 8,190 3915 433 12,538
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut R BEE 150 = = = 150
Independent non-executive directors BIKHTES
Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai IREXE 225 = = = 225
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun BuBEE 150 = = = 150
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique BREESSEE 150 = = = 150
525 - - - 525
675 8,190 3,915 433 13,213
No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments and no BE—_Z——Frk=_ZF—ZFF+=-_A=+—H
share options were granted to the directors of the Company for the IHFE - MESEEHNEXRERETAME -
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 (note 29). TNEZR D B8 B R BB RRE (P 5E29) -
(b)  Senior management emoluments (h) EREEAEME

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 were all directors of the Company
and details of their emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group and as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010.

HE-_Z——FRp-_T—TF+-_A=+—H
IEFE AEEREESTFMALHAEEQAR
BE - BRSNS 2 FBWAESFTR ©

BE—_2——Frk=-_F—ZFTF+-_A=+—H
HEE  AEBRERNAERSHFMA LTI
ERENE + ARSI E B AREE kA ME AR
S EMH B SR B R (E o
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties

The Group has the following significant transactions with related

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RAILFE

34. BEALRS

(a) EREEATETHRS

REFEMEALTDETATERRS

parties:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE FExT FAT
Rental expenses to Fontwell Holdings ¥ 5 F Fontwell Holdings Limited (i)

Limited (“Fontwell”) (TFontwell 1) B97H £ 7 3¢ = (1,053)
Pledge fee to Fontwell 5 F Fontwel K40 & (i) - (66)
Acquisition of leasehold land and buildings ~ [AFontwell Yt EEFH & + 3

from Fontwell Rig=F (iv) - (27,300)
Rental income from Clark Hatch Fitness A LSRN EaREERAR

Centers (Shanghai) Ltd. (“Clark Hatch”) ([Fehrse gar 1) WERE S U A (ii) 605 580
Membership fee to Clark Hatch YR FRNETNEHEE (ii) (81) (240)
Interest expenses to Chong Lai (Panama) ¥ {4 FChong Lai (Panama) (iii)

S.A. (“Chong Lai") S.A. ([Chong Lail) 9% 25852 - (74)
Notes: Kat -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. C.F. Tao, Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao have beneficial
interests in Fontwell. The charge by Fontwell was in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao are directors of Clark Hatch and
Mr. Paul Tao has beneficial interests in Clark Hatch. The charge
to Clark Hatch was in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements. The membership fee was charged at terms mutually
agreed by both parties.

Mr. C.F. Tao, Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao have beneficial
interests in Chong Lai. The charge by Chong Lai was in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement to purchase leasehold land and buildings at
a consideration of HK$27,300,000, which has been determined
based on a discount of 30% to their fair values of HK$39,000,000,
payable by allotting and issuing 109,200,000 ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.25 per
ordinary share. The purchase has been accounted for as a share-
based payment transaction in accordance with HKFRS 2. The
leasehold land and buildings have been recognised at their fair
values of HK$39,000,000 based on a valuation by DTZ, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers. The difference
between the subscription price and par value of total issued shares
amounting to HK$26,208,000 and the 30% discount to fair values
of the leasehold land and buildings amounting to HK$11,700,000
were credited to the Company’s share premium (notes 28 and 37).

The purchase from Fontwell was made on price and conditions as
mutually agreed.

Balances with related parties

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group did not have
outstanding balances with related parties.

0}

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BERLE BRITEERBHELER
Fontwell # A Bz © Fontwel JIiRIEAE
BREMIERRER -

R EERBGHLE RN ETNE
= MESEEER RN ETHHEEER
R o (A5 E T IR B A TR R AA R
h VIR FRURER - SRR B THIRAT T 2R
195 5E B0 R R URER

BMERLE BRITEERBHELER
Chong LaiF# B Emfgz ° Chong Lai /5B IE
BB GTREER -

BE-_ZT—ZTF+_A=+—BHUHEE &
E @ W - LA (E27,300,0008
THEERELHRIET  FERENIEEA
#t & {8 39,000,000 7% 7T #T 3R 30% if & &
MBREEMNKIBEBRZERETARR
109,200,0004% & A% E1 1 0.01 78 7T /) & i A% 2
- BITEASRLEERSET - BES
TEIREE S I 535 R 2555 Bk B LA
TR S  c HELHMEEFERAABE
39,000,000 SLHER * B AR BETIIRIE
BUABRBEEMEMBERITETNGEE
ATESE - 2PEBITRONREEEERE
K 7 §H26,208,000/8 7t M & + iy RIEFH)
AR EEIIE30%HE%E11,700,0008 LE
T AKRRA BRI B (M 5E28 % 37) °

AR A RFontwellfE B THIRE T 1 EHERR K

TERETT ©

(b) EREAEALHEREESR

RZE——FR=_T—TF+=-A=+—8"
AN B RS A T W R AR BN o
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contd) 34. BEALXRF(E)
(c) Key management personnel compensation (c) FEEEAEHM
The directors are of the opinion that the key management EERLE FEEEBEABESREALNTES -
personnel were solely the directors of the Company. Remuneration BENARBEENHMMAT

paid to the Company’s directors is as follows:

2011 2010

—E2——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Salaries, allowances and other benefit in kind e RN HMEYRIE 13,549 12,780
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme RIREEHEMER 639 433
14,188 13,213

35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. RERKEHERH
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXREE

Capital commitments in respect of properties held under REBERERTPYWENEREENT ¢
development for the Group are as follows:

Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Contracted but not provided for BEDMEREE 91,143 234,179
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have RZE—FRZT—TF+=A=+—1"
any significant capital commitments. A R R E ANAESE o
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35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Cont'd)

(b)  Operating lease arrangements
(i) The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land
and buildings which are receivable as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—&+-_F=+—HILFE

35. AFERKEHEREH)

(b)) KEHERH

()  AEEREBESAIBELEHERK T
FEFOARSEEZWALTENT

Group
AEH
2011 2010
—g——= —2-T%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year — &R 10,137 9,616
In the second to fifth years —ERF 9,605 6,600
19,742 16,216

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 15)
under operating lease arrangements which run for initial
periods of less than one year to five years (2010: less than
one year to five years) or expire at dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and the respective tenants, without
an option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits.

(i) The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land
and buildings which are payable as follows:

AEERBELEELTHHEEREDY
E(MIEELS) - VPRI RN —FERF
(ZF—FF : PR—FERF)REA
%@E@*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ’ﬂﬁ%@@ﬁ ’
T B P A R B AT AR R o
WER—RITRERPXNRERE -

(i) AEERBEIAIBELEHERN T
RETFHARRKERSEREBRENT :

Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Within one year —FR 42 184
In the second to fifth years “ERF = 19
42 203

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for initial periods of one to
two years (2010: one to two years) or expire at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
landlords, without an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry date.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had no
contingent rentals receivable or payable.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company had no
operating lease commitments as lessor or lessee.

AERREEEHETHAESENE - VA —
SWE(—F—FF - —SME) LA R ERIANE
ARG A EER LI B TR
iz -

RIE——FR-ZT—ZFF+_A=+—H K &H
jt??%&ﬂ%ﬂ&i%ﬁi%fﬂ@

R-B——FR-F"ZFF+-_A=+—0 " AQF
ﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁfﬁ)\jgﬁﬂ/\ﬁ’]i‘“%fﬂ SR
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36.

37.

38.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS — COMPANY

The Company provided corporate guarantees to certain banks for all
unsecured term loans granted to subsidiaries (note 26).

The carrying amount of the financial guarantee contracts recognised
in the Company’s statement of financial position was approximately
HK$1,259,000 (2010: HK$131,000) during the year ended 31
December 2011. The guarantee issued in prior years in respect of a
term loan is measured at the higher of the amount determined under
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (i.e.
the loan amount when it is probable to be called upon to repay) and
the amortised balance of that guarantee. The fair value of new financial
guarantee contracts is estimated by DTZ with parameters with reference
to “Corporate Default and Recovery Rates” published by Moody’s
Investors Service where the main assumptions are the probability of
default by the subsidiaries. Such financial guarantee contracts have
terms of one to seven years (2010: one to five years).

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group purchased from one
of its related parties leasehold land and buildings at a consideration of
HK$27,300,000, which has been determined based on a discount of
30% to their fair values of HK$39,000,000, payable by allotting and
issuing 109,200,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
at an issue price of HK$0.25 per ordinary share. The purchase has been
accounted for as a share-based payment transaction in accordance with
HKFRS 2. The leasehold land and buildings have been recognised at
their fair values of HK$39,000,000 based on a valuation by DTZ, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers. The difference between
the subscription price and par value of total issued shares amounting
to HK$26,208,000 and the 30% discount to fair values of the leasehold
land and buildings amounting to HK$11,700,000 were credited to the
Company’s share premium (note 30(b)).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing properties commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristic of
the underlying assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio.
For this purpose net debt is defined as borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. The Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain a net
debt to equity ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts.

36.

37.

38.

B TSR AR B RE

HBERAH —AAT

KRB THE A BMNAE BERERER -
TIRITIRE R RER(FHEE26) -

OF;

BHE-_Z—F+_-_A=+—HILEE £F&A7
AR BRAEROT B EREONEREN S
1,259,000 0 ( —ZE—Z4F : 131,000/87T) ° 3i—1A
TEHERMRBEFERLNERIZE ST LRSS
7RG IABRBERRARBENETeEANEH
B ESREENERSRE) BZERNEEEHRPH
BREE - U BERAONARBETAEE
RITFIASE RBEIREERS (Moody's Investors
Service)BEXRM[ PEELHRIREIR T FH2EH
i EREEBRRAWNBARENNKEER - 5RN
BERANNERA—ZELF(ZT—ZTF: —E0
F)o

FEHFRESRS

HE-_Z-ZTF+_A=1+—HLFE  KEERE
rh—ZREE A LAR{B27,300,000 TEE B THE L
LEF  BRERETIZE R & E1E39,000,0007% 7T
WIR30%MEBTE - MARERENFKIB BB KRBT
7872 7]109,200,0000% 5 1% 1 {E0.01 78 7T Ay T 3 A% =2
- BITEASKRLEI0.25ET - BERERES
R SRS R E2RIER ARG AL S -
B+ RAEF BN EE39,000,000/8 TR 5
BAARBEDNREE LS EEEEGEMBERITE
INEEESE - 22 BTRODDHEEERE
HIZ5626,208,000/8 L M E L RIEFHAREE
#rIR30%HI £ 511,700,000/ 7T 2 5t AR A T BEAD
a8 (FisE30(b)) »

EXEERRRER

AEHEREANTERBEREREEAFELE
BET1 - DATEN AR RIBH B N A H b F = ABRE 0
HAgs o THEREKIRERKFEENEER - I
BIEKAEITRE -

A EIREEAUR BB AR A E BB R
5 A R e IR -

REERFEERRL RNEEEREER - glit
5 OFRBNEEREBEREERREEEY - AL
EEAEENB RS TR ERELERERNEIEN
KE - BN SABREALE  AKEAHABLNT
IR A SRR - BITHAR D - RERATRE - &
SHMEBREXHNEEERE -
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38.

39.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—&+-_F=+—HILFE

38. EXEHEHERRERF &)

(Cont’d)
The Group’s overall strategy in capital management remains unchanged FR - REBEAEBNBRERBESTE -
during the year.
The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as RWEHR  AEENFaERERLENT ¢
follows:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Borrowings: BE:
— Current — & 187,247 285,996
— Non-current —IEmE 190,654 148,571
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 32) B BERIBESEEY(HiE32) (265,725) (422,108)
Net debt FEE 112,176 12,459
Total equity T 1,003,124 949,295
Net debt to equity ratio FEEERLE 11% 1%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. HRAREENBERBEZ
OBJECTIVES
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: currency risk, AEERZZEV KRR  E¥RR - FIXRR - 5

interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group currently does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key management to
analyse and formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the
Group is exposed are described below. See also note 39.7 for a summary
of financial assets and liabilities by category.

39.1 Currency risk

The Group reports its results in Hong Kong dollars. The Group'’s
primary foreign currency exposure arises from its property
development and investment activities in the PRC. The functional
currency of these operations is Renminbi and most of the financial
instruments are denominated in Renminbi. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial assets in the PRC as
they were denominated in a currency same as the functional
currencies of the group entities to which these transactions relate.

ERe B A AR - AEENEERR ﬁﬁé%
ER SRS AR TRANE - WSKGHREEIH
RAMBEINTERERE o REERRWEER
AN EREIERE RIS - A EEFSEHER
B WHEIEE @AE%7A¢ AT R BIE TR
MEAEIE N ST A

AEELELEAREASARENEREEESR - K&
B P S ) R 2B SRR BTGNS o AR ERID
TEREERBERETA2HME30.7

39.1 E¥ERK

REBMEEINETES - REBEN T EINE

R EENPENMEEREREED - %

EXBNREESARE - MASH SR T

AETUARKESE - AR FENEREE

TIAEZER FIS RSB R ERIE
RN ERIIE R ERER PR REE
RINERR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39.
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.2

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating interest rate
borrowings. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s
and the Company’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

B TSR AR B RE

BHREREENEERB&E#)

39.2 FIERR

AR B R SR B B T A RO ) 2R [mL e = BB AR [ Y
FEEERH - AEEYEEREMITETASOY
FRECR R o AT - EIE R  A R T B
Wi R R E BEIHEAFEER

TR AT A R B AR FIR RS MR RS A
BEIER -

Group Company
r5E |
2011 2010 2011 2010
g% —Z-TF —E—-F —Z-3F
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest rate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000
BRA=E T#x kS T BRA= TR ERFI% THET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFREE
Loans from non-controlling HrRREER
shareholders 1.60%-4.10% 112,672 1.60%-6.75% 114,698 - - - -
Convertible notes THRER 13.38% 69,675 6.28% 73,672 13.38% 69,675 6.28% 73,672
182,347 188,370 69,675 73,672
Variable rate borrowings: FEFIEES
Bank loans RTER 1.33%-6.90% 265,229 1.07%-6.21% 319,869 - - - -
Total borrowings EEm:t 447 576 508,239 69,675 73,672
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39.2

39.3

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—&+-_F=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. BIXEREENBRERBEZEZ)
OBJECTIVES (Contd)
Interest rate risk (Cont'd) 39.2 FRRA(E)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the TRERMEET RN REERE EEARKE
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits that would raise if HFR A HIR S8 (R ATA E R Al
interest rates to which the group entities have significant exposure FREEFTE) - $’¥ BHBR % BN RRE
at the end of the reporting period had changes at that date, BB R BN H IR A &
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
Group Company
AEH b ON|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——f “Z-TF —2——-F —Z-%F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THEx FiET TET TAEL
Increase in interest rate FE LA 100 basis points 100 basis points 100 basis points 100 basis points
100BE 100{EE2 100BEE 100fEE2E
Decrease in profit for the year EF BHFAD (2,051) (2,436) - =
Decrease in retained profits REBBFRLD (2,051) (2,436) - -
Decrease in interest rate FET % (100 hasis points) (100 basis points) (100 basis points) (100 basis points)
(100BEE) (1001E% ) (100fEE2) (100fE%2E)
Increase in profit for the year ERRMEM 2,051 2,436 - -
Increase in retained profits [RE BRI 2,051 2,436 - =
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming T BRRE ST ERRF RSB ERREER
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of T BRFARFHAENS M T AN ERR M
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to BT o MR 100EES AEEEH T —
interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence for the fﬁr#ﬁiﬁHHZHIJHHF'EJﬂYE’]AIETHb“@Jm
whole year. The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents HEt - BESMTERARZZE—ZF+=A
management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in =t+—HMOEIE -
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.
The same basis of analysis was also performed as at 31 December
2010.
Credit risk 393 FERE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts and AEBHEERREZ R E BRI R EALE

other receivables, deposits paid and bank deposits. The Group’s
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other
counterparties, identifies either individually or by group, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where
available at reasonable cost, external reports on customers and
other counterparties are obtained and used.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

WepkaR Eﬁ?ﬁi/i\&fﬁﬁfy« REBHER
BEHAASZNERRR

AEETEERERKFRETR REMBRS
TEERER  SRMEERRIES T E EiEL
BF - WRASE  AEBESBERNBEH
BEPREMRFITHIMNEHRE -

FEENSREEGEANB AR EME
BRI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z—&+-_F=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.3

39.4

Credit risk (Cont’d)

In respect of accounts and other receivables, the Group is not
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The credit risk for liquid funds is considered
minimal, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality of external credit ratings.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Company due to financial guarantee
contracts provided to its subsidiaries, the Company is exposed to
credit risk for maximum amount of approximately HK$72,611,000
(2010: HK$43,985,000), being the amount of contingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantee contracts issued.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group does not have any
significant liquidity risk exposure.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term
financial liabilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group and the Company’s
bank borrowings, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period in
which the Group and the Company can be required to pay, that is
if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other bank
borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

B TSR AR B RE

BHREREENEERB&E#)

39.3

394

EEEB(E)

AR FE AR R I LAt FE ORI - NSRBI MR AT
fAIEXEERR ST RERMERIZ 5 75 A ]
MHERUNR ST - BRASENR S HEAE
FERIRIDEEFTRSMRT - ALLHRE
RBESHNEERBRAIRET DB -

ZLVAETFW%%E’\JEE‘?%%EELI‘@%EFcﬂ,ﬁ—tm%
NEEH ﬁﬁ‘%F%A ’J CERBEEEHAR
RAIRZUHBER  RARMAZEERRE

=& fﬁ%ﬁ%’]i%72,611,0005%7_5(:2*?& 3

43,985,000/ 7T) * AT LB BERENE

B ARESE

REBE SR

EE/ML@J%%HEMET ’ ZX%.E*? &zﬁﬁ‘i@u
%&EE%#F‘%LH BRERRITRHIKE -
NERAEEEBRHE S RERSREN
BNTE - ARRIEERE - ANEEWEE
EARBE SRR ©

AEENBRREREZERPESTFE
BRASEEFAMESFHEIONREE AL
EHERAENRDESTFE

TRITERFTBARSRE (BIFEE O X

(AT BRI E MARMBITRI R E AT
S RARRAIBEAERNRT AHMZT

AR E R AR BRI E BIRROIRITIE S AR
BAIHAR -

ABEME - HORERTAI2ENBEITENR
ZRERGEROEHRER - BEDITRAEE

KA R Rl B 7R SR B T ER R (B B 5 4
TSGR ENERAREREER) 251
SnE - EIRTEENEIE A DT AR 2
BN ABREE

115

MEERARAT —T——FFR



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR EE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

OBJECTIVES (Conta)

.U BEREENHERREE#)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RAL%FE

39.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 394 FBESEKRE)
Group Company
558 LY%]
Total Total
contractual contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Less than 6t 12 s Mter5  Camying undiscounted Less than 6t 12 ['H
amount ~ cashflows ~ Ondemand 6 months months years years amount ~ cashflows  Ondemand 6 months months years
SRR ~ERE SRR AMERE
BEE BEREAE  HEX OWAER toER -EERE IEME REE BEMEEE  RER JWAER R -§EIE
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO000  HKS0OD  HK$000
Tén TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TErn TR TR TER  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn
211 3-—-f
Accounts payable EARER 89865 89865 89865 = = = = = = = = = =
Accruals deposit received iR Bluzs
and other payables REfERTE 43,144 43,144 43,144 - - - - 8,205 8,205 8,205 - - -
Term oans subject o repayment  MERERERRTMTHED
on demand clause 72611 72611 12611 - - - - - - - - - -
Other bank loans EfBER 192618 207,793 - BT 90446 80,202 3218 - - - - - -
Loan flom non-controling FHERREER
shareholders 1126712 116013 - - - 116013 - - - - - - -
Convertible notes TERZE 69,675 94,866 - 2,250 2,250 90,366 - 69,675 94,866 - 2,250 2,250 90,366
580585 624292 205620 36,117 92,69 266,581 328 T80 103071 8,205 2250 2250 90,366
Financial guarantees issued: Bl EFHER
Maxmumamount quaranieed ~ SERSE - - - - - - - 1259 72611 72611 = = =
Group Company
158 4407
Total Total
contractual contractual
Carrying undiscounted Less than 61012 1t After5  Camying undiscounted Less than 6012 105
amount  cashflows  Ondemand 6 months months years years amount Ondemand 6 months manths years
AR ~ERZ ~ERZ
Bl Be BER ORAER  TBR FERE AENE ’Ek SRR t-BR §ERE
HK$000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS$O00 HKS000  HKFO0D  HKS000  HKS000
T TR TR TEn  TEr TEn T TR TEn TEn
210 “3-%F
Accounts payable B 87883 gI83 87883 = = = = = = = = = =
Accruals, deposit received [EEFEE  Blg
and other payables REMEMTE 5% U5%  245% - - - - 6,576 6,576 6,576 - - -
Term loans subject o repayment KB RERER KR HET
on demand clause 43985 4398 43985 - - - - - - - - - -
Other bank loans EfBIER 2584 3113% - 101667 146582 H3489 9,658 - - - - - -
Loan from non-controling FIERREER
shareholders 114698 118712 - 14,000 9900 %812 - - - - - - -
Amount due toa subsidiary FEr-HMEAFE = = = = = - = 15 15 15 - - -
Convertble notes THREE 1362 879 - 1875 18 7799 - 72 879 - 1875 18 77969
620718 668291  1%6464 117542 19837 226210 9658 80263 88310 6,591 1875 18 77969
Financial guarantes issued: BHEBHKER:
Maximum amount guaranteed REEREE - - - - - - - 131 43985 43,985 - - -

116

New Heritage Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements

B TSR AR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (Contd)

39. BBEREENHRREE®)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 394 REBELEM(E)

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of term
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained in page 116. Taking into account the Group’s and the
Company’s financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such term loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

Maturity analysis of term loans subject to a repayment on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments is as follows:

TREUILH B R ESKMEE GRNEHEFIRE
IS e &R A I BIH R 94T - %
EeHEEERENVNRAENFEKEA -
It ZELERFLICAMBIHARTHZ
2R IFFBEARENSRAED - ERAE
B RARBWBM AR - EERBIRIT AR
BEITE HBBEE AN BN - ESHEXRS
TERE RS IRE R B PrE rOBEE 8 3K B BAME
8o

BB B E R G E R IR e B3R A
HWREHB AT

Group
REE
Total
undiscounted Less than 6to 1to After
cash flows On demand 6 months 12 months 5 years 5 years
RITR ~MEAE
BEREBRE REX DRAEA +=@R —-£Z1fF BEENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FEx FExT FEx FEx BT
31 December 2011 —E——%+-HA=+—8 717,353 - 11,297 11,210 50,677 4,169
31 December 2010 —T-TF+-_fA=+—H 48,636 - 5,308 4,886 32,076 6,366
The Company did not have any term loans subject to repayment RZE——FR =T —ZTF+-_A=+—H
on demand clause as at 31 December 2011 and 2010. AR RV EE RN EREREEEFTNEHE
o,
seppeman —=——xeg 117
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BTSRRI RE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.5

39.6

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of the
Group'’s financial assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The fair values of
non-current financial assets and liabilities were not disclosed
because these are not materially different from their carrying
amounts.

Fair value measurement recognised in the statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

o Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset
or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, no financial assets and
liabilities were measured at fair value. Accordingly, the hierarchy
for fair value measurement disclosures have not been presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—RAILFE

39. IRREENBEREBEEZ®E)

39.5

39.6

DNAEE

ARBEZRS  ARNZFER T AERHK
EHEE  gAKEEREENAENARE
ERHEREEZEETA - ARFERDEMEE
LAENARBEEAREEZRIKN KX
BIEAR(EE-

RUBRRBRBEZNDABETE

ZEBREARGESREENABENARE
ENSRHABENAL I ERESAXSTTR
BENBERNS=BREHR - 2L BEEBHEY
RAT A

s F—F RAKEERAEMNRGRE
MiSHRE R

e BTE BRE-—ENORESN EEX
BfEMmE A& (BIER) Sk (Bl h
ERITE)BROBARE - &

s FBZE: WHIRBEUBEMSEEAR
EESXRENBABE(THHEEHA
%)

SREEFRENDABEBROERIETD
REHALABEAENTFAERTENRERE
WE ABIBAETT -

R-B——GFR-F-FF+-A=+—8"
Bme AR AERALBENE - Atk
P LI DA BEEREEHE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b EE:

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. BiEMEENHEREE®)
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.7 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category 39.7 BRERIAEREEREEME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and RBERREIZNAEBeEENAGERT
liabilities as recognised at the end of the reporting period may be BRIEIDWT - SR T ES BT ER
categorised as follows. See notes 4(j) and 4(m) for explanations %= - BREMTEA() RAM)AIERER ©

about how the classification of financial instruments affects their
subsequent measurement.

Group Company
i NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-F —Z-TF —E—-F —T-TF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET THET TET THT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables: R R EKFE :
Accounts receivable FEURER TR 84 41 - -
Deposits paid and other receivables BfRe REMEKGIR 30,073 21,266 = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries G EVNGE ] - = 469,616 502,261
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIRITER 92,860 18,712 - -
Cash and cash equivalents HERHALEEY 265,725 422108 5,353 140
388,742 462,127 474,969 502,401
Financial liabilities cRARE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: ~ IR# R At BN SREAR
Accounts payable FERERR 89,865 87,883 = =
Accruals, deposits received and other [E:EBR  BddRe
payables REMERFIB 43,144 24,596 8,205 6,576
Borrowings EE 377,901 434,567 - -
Convertible notes ERRER 69,675 73,672 69,675 73,672
Amount due to a subsidiary ER—RHBARFUA - = = 15
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAN - = 1,259 131
580,585 620,718 79,139 80,3%4

seepemas —z—se5 119



Group Financial Summary

SEMBHE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—EBE-—-F ZZ-TF CZTTHF ZTT\F CZTTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue W25 375,182 375,526 258,865 91,715 184,560
Profit/(Loss) from operations KEREF, (518) 18,713 49,364 38,297 (43,980) 53,285
Finance costs RN (6,205) (18,616) (26,252) (25,955) (12,975)
Share of results of associates JE(LEEE N RIHEE 18,500 13,424 6,090 23,831 21,417
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BETSRiRI &R () 31,008 44172 18,135 (46,104) 61,727
Income tax (expense)/credit FrisFi (), /B E (20,131) (17,379) (6,133) 83 (16,162)
Profit/(Loss) for the year EERF,/ (E58) 10,877 26,793 12,002 (46,021) 45,565
Attributable to the owners of the Company 72 &A% B fE(L 12,163 18,061 15,854 (33,225) 36,115
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION HREMBMRRERE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
=B C"E-TH _"ZTTNFE "TIT\F _"TTLH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT FAT FHT FAT
(restated) (restated)
(&g=351) (=5)
Non-current assets FEREBEE 531,609 515,020 473,660 547,357 479,742
Current assets TENEE 1,139,131 1,144,055 1,069,138 888,561 849,901
Current liabilities mENEE (366,596)  (451,499)  (317,436)  (208,079)  (194,848)
Non-current liabilities e IN= (301,020) (258,281) (353,737) (372,484) (287,612)
Net assets BEFE 1,003,124 949,295 871,625 855,355 847,183
Capital and reserves attributable to AARRE IR
the owners of the company R EE 912,040 866,536 788,569 765,703 756,326

120

New Heritage Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2011



Investment Properties

REWE

Properties

L/ES

The Shopping arcade of Phase 1
and all shops on Level 1 at Zone A
of Phase 5, Suzhou Garden Villa,
98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Fp BT #8280 LU B985
IREELLE — BRI IS
ERA—IEARERET

Shops on Levels 1, 2 and 3 of Block 11
and the basement, Suzhou Garden Court,
1333 Bin He Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Fp BT AR BN T T IR B A S 133355
IRENFIIE—E . 1 =2

% [l i Rt s

Villa J101, Suzhou Garden Villa
Phase 1, 98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Hp BT 8k & k)N T #7280 LU BR O8] SR
iREEILE —HIJ101 5IEE

Flat 1A of Jin Hua Tower,

Suzhou Garden Villa

Phase 1, 98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

BT &K & gk T 87 (R 240 L1 BR O8SR
IRIESLE —HAIREIEIAE

Approximate

interest Approximate

attributable Total Gross

to the Group Floor Area
(sq.m.)

EC

BER BEZEEEBED
(F5%)

86% 11,023

86% 4,481

86% 270

86% 110

List of Principal Properties

Type

5l

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Residential
F=

Residential
*=

EEYE

Lease Term
THE

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
B—ANZF+A+IABE
ZERZFt+HA+NAR
AEETF

70 years from

16 January 1995 to

15 January 2065
BH—ANAE—A+RBEE
—ERAF—A+HA
REETF

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
B—ANZFTAT+ABEE
ZERZF+HA+NAR
REETE

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
BH—ANZFTAT+ABZE
ZERZF+HA+TNAR
REETE

FEZERARAT

—z——xxg 121



List of Principal Properties

EEWF

Investment Properties (Cont'a)

REWMHE2)

Approximate
interest

attributable
to the Group

Approximate
Total Gross
Floor Area
(sgq.m.)

Properties

KERS

LIE S AR HEEERLD

CEA3K)

Flat 1D of Jin Guo Tower, Flats 1C,

2D, 6A to 6D, 7C, 8B, 8C,

9B to 9D, 10B to 10D, 11Ato 11D,
12Ato 12D, 15B, 16A, 16C,

16D, 17Ato 17D, 18A to 18D, 19A, 19C,
19D and 20B to 20D of Jin Sing Tower,
Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 2,

98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

AR BT &R &R T 37 12 0 L BEO85R
RIS E _HRBEEIDE - SREEICE -
2DE * 6AE6DE - /CE ~ 8BE

8CZE 9BZEIDE * I0BE1IODE
11AZ11DE * 12AZ12DE »

15BE * 16A=E * 16CE - 16DE »
17AZ17DE - 18AZ18DE

19A=E - 19CZE * 19DE NK20BE20DE

86% 6,757

Flats 1B, 1D and 1F of Jin Bon Tower,
Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 3,

98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Fp BT &k & RN T 8T [@ R0 LU BR 085K
IRFEILE —HAIRIIZIB - IDRIFE

86% 484

Beijing Landmark Towers, 30.05%*
8 East Third Ring North Road,

Chaoyang District,

Beijing,

the PRC

A B R EA RS [ 3R = BRI B 85R

EREHETRE

15,504

50,768

22,663

15,504

25,705

*

Group under “Interests in associates” in note 17 to the financial statements.

*

Type Lease Term

=Wl HE

Residential 70 years from

= 19 October 1992 to
18 October 2062
B—ANLZFTATABZE
ZTRZFETATNE
REBETF

Residential 70 years from

E=] 19 October 1991 to
18 October 2061
H—AAL—F+A+ABEE
ZER—FTA+NR
REETE

Hotel The land use rights of the

BIE property have been vested in
Beijing Landmark Towers Co.,

Office Ltd. by allocation for a term

WAE from 30 January 1986 to
7 October 2020

Shop RN T AR RE

[ BHARTIEREEAAE
BRAR - FHE—NN

Service F-—A=THRBRE-Z-F

Apartment F+A+tHER

REXAE

Basements

/e

BAMBERRM L7 B S DR R | — 5 -
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Properties Held Under Development

LRy ES

Approximate

List of Principal Properties

EEYE

interest Approximate Approximate
attributable Total Total Gross Actual/Estimated
Properties to the Group Site Area Floor Area Type Date of Completion Progress
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
K@t B
/S B fEsR EBEES AEREEEN  E5 BT A ERMR
(FAK) (FEAK)
Wuzhong Garden Court 54% 41,579 61,484 Residential Phase | Completed
situated at south side of November 2007
Nanxijiang Road
and east side of Residential Phase Il Completed
Mingxi Road, November 2008
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Residential/ Phase IlI Completed
EilT) Commercial ~ June 2010
AR BT &R B #M T
RepEmEZTRERR = £ —H B¥%T
AR R {A T2+ E+ R
F= E— 1 B®RT
ZTEN\F+—A
T/ BE £=8 B¥%T
—T-TFXA
Taihu Garden Court 55% 131,445 92,037 Residential Phase | Completed
situated at June 2009
Ling Tang Road North,
West of Mu Guang Canal, Residential Phase Il Completed
Guangfu Town, December 2011
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Residential Phase Il Under
=57 2012 construction
AR BT &R A B M T
RAEKIEH F= £—H B%RT
EFERILA —ZTNFRA
AR
FE FH BT
—ZT—%+ZR
F= FE=H1 e
—T—F
sRpRARAT —2——548 123



List of Principal Properties

EEWF

2. Properties Held Under Development (Conta)

BRPYR#E)
Approximate
interest Approximate Approximate
attributable Total Total Gross Actual/Estimated
Properties to the Group Site Area Floor Area Type Date of Completion Progress
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
KBk BB fhst
LES BRRERE HWBEELY AREEREN  ER BIHH ERMR
(FEFRK) (FAXK)
Lakeside Garden Court 94% 86,236 155,225 Residential/ Phase | Completed
situated at East shore of Commercial December 2010
Long Zhong Lake in
Shengze Town, Residential Phase Il Completed
Wujiang City, Suzhou, December 2011
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
b2 Residential Phase Il Under
MRPBIERE 2012 construction
MR TmREE
BB s R A Residential Phase IV Under
2014 construction
IE/H%E £ B#T
—T-ZTF+ZA
FE E_H B#T
—T——%+tZA
= E=H S
—T——F
E=2 i jetatey
—ZT—mF
Office, SOHO and retail arcade 100% 14,592 58,368 Commercial/  2014/2015 Piling
to be situated at Ta Yun Road West, Office commenced
Yue Lai Xi East,
Economic Development Zone, BE/ AT —T-NE/ BERIRE
Wuzhong District, Suzhou, —T—-hF Fs

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PWAZ  PNEPWAE/ REHAE
REEBS
FEALRA R BT A RN
RHRLEERER

HE R PR RO R A
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